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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

ABOUT US

internationc! Entertainment Hoidings Limited {the Company} is on international helding group majority owned
by Provicence Equity Partners. The principal octivity of the Company is to hold compenies thet carry out
complementary actvifies across the value chain of five entertainment and theatre-related aotvity, principaly
in the UK. USA. and Confinental Europe {the Group). The Group considers that these markets have sgnificant

poteniicl tor growth and 1omms the hasly for the Group’s stratedy of furher crowi iy urd expsansion.

The Compcny’s main holding is The Ambasscdor Theatre Group Limited (ATG). ATG is o global leader in live
ertertainment ond is a tully integreted operctor across the entire live entertainment value chair, with acfivities
in venue cpearations, ticketing. marketing services ond content production. ATG cperctes in Germany througn
its subsidiary tAehil-BB Entertainment GmbH {Mehr-BB, which was tormed by the merger of the mehrl Group

(ocquired in May 2018) with the BB Entertoinment Group of comparies {ocquired in May 2015).
QOVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ATG is tocused on providing a high leve! ot service to two graups of custemers; producers and cudience
rmembers, By making the end-to-end “customer journey” of cur cudience oo pricnty, we will ensuce that our
venues ore the best stages tor the highest qudity content geveleped by both our own in-house as well as 3'-

oorty progucers.
Venue Operations

The aim of our verue operalions division (s to prov'de a great service ¢ both our procucers and our audience
members. We generate revenues from renting our venues to productions os well as seling food and

beverages to our gudience members,

In order to enhance our customers” tneatre going experience, we hove cortinued 1o invest in improving the
quality of out venues, Many of the Group's venues are hislono buildings which nave ar important
significonce in thel ocal arecs. nvedmenl ie the maintenance of these buildings is central "o Ine Groop's
cudodianshipz of them for the benefin of ‘wtore generclions of asudiences. The developmen! oad
imprevemeant af these venues to meel the needs ond expectations of loday s udiences ang progucer are

qually imporiand.

In the UK, the Group owns and ogerates some of the most iconic venues with 11 11 Londen ond 21 more
noress the regoas. the Grouo opercles 10 theatres in the USA inciuding two Broodway venuses {the Lynic and
tae Modson), and B theatres in ather US ¢ ties, incliding the Curran {San Francisco). which cpened in October

2009 The Group o'sc operates 5 venues in Germany as cart of the Mehri-BB Entertcinment Group.

1 thie West End (UK, Tre fion King (lyceum Theatre] ond Wicked [Apolo Victora Thealre] continued their
hugely successiul and loeg term rwns, aso we welcomesd new intermationally acolarned content 1o owr ofher
vernbes inGiuding Belrayai [Haroid Ficler Theare)on nmokellen on $iage (Harela Pinter Theolie), The Lehmars
Trilogy Piccaailly Thealie), Death of o Smiesman (Pocadily Thealre], Fdder orthe Rool [Playhoate Thealre),

gl




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Cyraro de Bergerac (Playhouie Theaire), Quiregional venues in the UK cise had a strong year, with pramium

shicws such as The Lion King, Book of Mormon, and Matitds playing to full houses and excellent revigws.

For the second year in arow, growth in admiss'ons in tne US was driven by Hamy Potler and the Cursed Chila,
and ir October 2019 the Curmran Theatre in Scn Froncisco opened s the West Coast home of this show, Other
highlights includea hosting David Byrne's Americon Uopia ot tne Hudson Theatre on Broadway. which
playes to a consslently so'd-cut audence, as wel as Plarg Suite ot the Colonicl [Boston] ond strong

drondway musical content {which included Hamilton) acress our other regioncl theatres,

in Germany, admiwsions decreased largely due to a significant number of venues closed for rencvations. The
Mehirl Theatre in Homburg was closed tor 11 manths of this financicl period as it was refurbished from a one-
nighter mus:c venue to o theatre with bock of house capabiities suitabie tor long running musicals and ploys.
The Musical Come in Cologne was closed ir August and Septemuoer 2019 for works 1o enhance the puilding.
and the Adnvrgispalast (Berlin] was closed for refurbisnments by the lendiord which extendec the side sfoge
ond returbished the back of house spaces. Staright Express [Bochum] continues 16 perform strangly having
played for over 30 vears and in February 2020 we opened “he Mehr! Thectre (Hamourg) for the previews of

Harry Po-ter angd the Cursea Child.
Tickefing

The Group operates the iargest theatre ticketing business in the UK and sells the majority of fickets 1o its showes
mrough its own tickeling businesses, ATS Tickels, the Group's in-house ticketing business contfinues 10 grow
acress e Regional and London venues, while the ficketing agency busness of the Group, LOVEtheatre.com
continued to perlarm steadily in 0 competitive London marketploce. ATG Tickets has launched in thre USA
with tickets sold tor the Calonial, Hudson and the Curron. We have invested significant v in improving our
website to increase toles conversion and have ¢lso improved auwr customer relationship moragement

capohilties, bothk of these initiatives will improve marketing irvestment etticacy.
Content Production

A key strateqy of the Group's Content Production division is 1o find, secure, and preduce high-cuality shiows
tor both ATG ond third-porty venues. The Groug develops and praduces new confent in aoditicn to co-

producing and investing in and presenting content from independent producers,

ATG Produchons enjoyed a hugely successful yeor, culminalingg irowinning Producer of the: Yeor of The Stoge
Awards, Tre Pinder of the Pinder seoson, which started in FY 19, [inished in FY20 with o staad-alone production
of Befraye [which then frans’ened to Broaoway). Claer highlights for ATG Procuctions included € e b The
Musicer {Savoy Thedalre). Carclng, o Change (Playhowse Theole). Touching the Void [(Duke of York's

Theatre), and Cyrano de Bergerao [Playhouse Theate),

Sonia friedmeon Preduectont also enjoyved o strong yoor, with Tac Inncritonce transfeming to Broodwaoy (shomy
atter winning on Olivier Award), ard Rosmersnolm (Cuke of York's Theotre), Uncle Yonyc [Horo'd Finter

Trea'ra) and Leorcolcsiact (Wyndham's Theaire] alse receiving chficel acclaim. The success of Harry Patter
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

and the Cured Child conlinved, opening in Melboutne, San Francisco anc Hambuwrg, and the

anrouncement of the show opening in Taronto for Autumn 2021,

In Germany, Mehr-BB! continued 1o zelight Furcpean cudiences with West Side Story. The Bodyguerd, and
their new procduction of Berlin Berlin, Due ta COVIR-1 9. the press launch of the Germnan production of Harry

fotler ond the Cursed Child waos delayed.
Markeding

Tre Group throagh s subsichary comparics of AKA Group. headguartered in tongon ana B8 Groug. head-
qguartered in mannheim, Gormaony, is chile to offor o wide range of marketing services, wnich are inding ard
complementary to the Group's averal shrategy, AKA. ¢ global enterfanment moarkeling and media
adverlising agency for the live enterainment, arts and cultura! industries hos offices in London, Monchester,
New York angd Antiaio, AKA has continued 1o support the Group's shategy of developing indeperdent yet
complementary business ines to provide Q full service experience to clients within the tneatte and lve
ertertainment industry, Furthermaore, AKA has seen sy business offering extend further afield with clients not

directy inked o the live entertcinment indastry, such s museurns, aalieries, garaens and zoolocica centres,

Alongsiae its procuction services, Mehr-BE Group. via its subsdiary ESMS. provides marketing services for ive

ertertairment prasuctions in German-speaking Lurcpe.

Tre directors see the Group oy strongly place for future sucoess, with ds complementary activibes ard

onerators lecated ir each of he key theotrica morkets oross the world.
REVIEW OF FY20

e pericd to 28 March 2020 was a vear of continued transformation ard integrolion for the Group, with a
review of ol areas of e business 1o ensure the foundations of the business are sulficienty rabust 1o support

tre: growth aspirations of the directors and shareholders.

Joourtil the midale of Morch, FY20 was a very successful year with our wond-closs creative teaoms (ATG
Procuctions, SFP and BB) producing high-gudli'y and award-winning confent arounc the world with strong
ticket sales compored to ful yeor 2019, However, in Maorch 2020, the COVID-1$ pondemic impocted the

Group significantiy, with ail of oul glot:a! venues closing by 17 March 2020,

Tres finee: month {March) of FY205 was o peried of consiaerable uncenainty for gb businesses. including ours,
which wanented o response 10 he unprecedentes mpact of the COVID-1% ponoemic. We recognised
chlickly that there were tkely ta be significant impleations af thiz pandermc on ourselves, o8 wel os all olbe
location prsed enterfanmen] Dusmesses. Oor morkeing services business was alio impacted oy many of ils
ciienls are theatrical o lncalion entertainment bosnesses, ke museums and golieries, By 17 March 2020, we
hod elosed all of o venoes worlowide, i order 1o oretect thow casts and Crew members. o employeess

and visitory. Since 1hen, we hive diigently falowed all gaverrren guideine: in each relevant aeograshy.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

As aresult of tnis pandemic, ard in order to praotect and menage our business, we have taken the ‘ollowing

medaiures.

- created a Business Continaity Cormmittec. which has been focused on crsls management ang key

decision making:
- ongong engagermenrt with all our stokeholders, inclodng our sharerolders ond lenders

implemeriation of bi-weekly cash flow lorecasts to manage liauidity ¢t ¢ gronular leve: throughout

the Groups:
- robust scencria mode 'ng ta drive decision making:

- prooctive management of reschedulng shows to future dates to minimize the level of show

cancellations:

asignificont elerment of the Group’s cost base reiates 1o wages zne salaries. Wnere possible, and
subject to tocal regulations, stafling levels and hours worked have beenredoced. Empiovess have
also urdertcken salery sacrifices, with the Direciors drowing no solary for the period from April 1o
June, followed by callecting o reduced salary from then on, Government suppoaort has been ulifited

to offset stafling cosds that continue o be incurred;
capial expendiure has been rephased or deloyed; and

- actions have been taken to defer or reduce poyments of fixed costs ond unpoid vorioble costs from
the pre-crisic period, including ocgreements with government tiscal authorities on certoain tax

poymants,

The loss belare 1ax for the period of £33.9 milien {2019 £28.2 milion) is higher than last year driven by the
impact of one-afl wsses related 1o COVID-19, spacificaly provisions related to costs of refunds, concelled
shows and bad delt, coupled with related impairment charges booked and increased depreciation charge
as aresult of ihe ficst 10l year of accounting for all leases under IFRS14 - Leases. Loss ofler fox was £25.9 millon

{2019 £31.5 milion).

Capital structure and investment

As of year-end, ouwr senmor drawn faci ibes were £427 4 milion with on additional £5.6 million of undrawn facilities
remaining. The malurily dote of these facilifies is 2023, Subsequent {o the veor end, due to the COVID-1Y
siuation, tne Group entered into discussions with cuwr lenders for g covenant emendment. This cmendment
erables the Group to adjust i's covenaris whilst cur venues are closed o imite It operafions due te COVID-
19, thereby reducing the 1isk of covenant defaull. As part of the amendment. @ minimuem liquidity covenant

ws infreduced, which reguires the business o maintain a certzin tevel of cosh.

e busness confirucd its level of investments in procerty, plant ond infangibic ossets, with £43.7 milkon (2019:
123.4 milicn) invested in progperty, olant and caupment icfer to note 130 L6.2 milion (2009: £9.4 million)
investea in saftware and £7.4 milion (2019 £nil} invested in pre-proctuction relates costs. os part of Other

intangitzles {refer to nete 12).
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Advenced ficket sales

fue 1o the COVID-19 situation, the Group has been mangoging its obligations with regards to refunds on

advance ticket saies for the pericd of suspended bookings by actively rescheduling perfformances to future

dates, ssuing vouchers 1o use Tor future bookings s well as crealing o temporary col: centre 10 process and

manage the increased volume of customer refund related enquinies.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Non-financial
' Gilobal Admissions Giobal Occupancy Number of fickets sold
12.3m 68.5% 9.5m
12019 12.0m; {2019 64.3%) (201%: 3.0m)*
Anancial ;
‘ Revenue Qperating profit
£4756.7m £2.2m

(201%: £443. Zmy

(2019 £26.3m|

PY g restated lo include ticeets <ol by 410 as well as aifee gereraing tickets,

Tne directors consider the finardal cno operational performance ond position of the business using a renge

ot nan-tinoncial and financial metrics.

Nan-Financicl KPis:

- Giohal admissiors [number of people ottending a performance that has eccurred within tne relevont

period} have grown by 2.5% year on year. Growth in admissions ore daiven botn by the incresse in

our globol venuc portfoiia as well os the strengthening n guality of content shown in our venues.

- Giobol cocoupanay has incieqsed by 4,.2% vear on veot. indicaing the strengthening of the quality of
8 ki ¥ ) 14 a . d ¥

our content. Our giobal ocounancy of 68.5% indicates *he fuihel neamooam for growlin,

Numrber of fickets sold (tickat sale tronsoctions duting the relevant peried thet may be for

perlormaonces ‘hat mature beyvond fhe relevant perod), has increcsed year on yeor by 5.5%, onven

by the growth i1 vernues as wel: ¢s *he improveriert of the content siate in the upceming penods.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Financial KPis:

-~ Revenue hgsincreased by £33.6 milion from 2019, driven by increased sales os a result of better
content in the US, and the opening of Horry Potter ana the Cursed Child in San Francisco, Please

refer to note 3 for geographical analysis of revenue.

- Dperating profi has decrensed year on yeor to £2.2m (201%: £28.3 milion) driven primanily by the
impact of COVIR-19 across the thectre industry, resuiting in one-off lasses specifically due to provisions
ralated to costs of refunds, cancelled shows ond bod debt, The Group has clso recogniscad
impairment charges this year, vs £1ilin the PY and increosed depreciction charge os a result of the
first full year of accounting for all legses under IFRS1 ¢ -~ Legses, has alse contributed 1o the decreosed

profit.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW

Trhe position of the Group at the perod-end is sot oul in the consolidated statement of fincncial position on

pogos 36 and 37, and in the related note on pages 41 1o 94,

Cosh from operaling actvities hes increased by £16.5 milion driven by ¢ year on year increase in
operating cask flows before working capital movements of £28.4 milion. ofisel by lower woring

copital mavemenis of £8.2 milion ang higher corporation tax payments of £3.7 million.

. investing cash flows include £54.1 milion (2019: £28.5 mition} of capital expendiiure ond intangitle
cssets investe s 1o improve the qualty of the verues os describeg above ond to invest in operatng
infrostructure and systerms, offset by £1.9 milion {(2009: £0.3 millicn nct investmant in show) not

recoupment in show investments in the penod.

- Allhough net senior debt is higher year on year, the closing cash podilion of the Group is £40.1 mifion
higher which includes an increases escrow balance of £8.8 milien (2019: £7.4 milicn;. Buring the
period, £6%.4 milion [201%; Nil} wos drown on the RCF facility, resulfing in £5.4 millen (20019 475

millian} being unutiised af the end of the yeor.

Leverage and liguidity

Tre Group performed com’onably within s net leverage covenant trroughout the period. The net leverage
covenant, specifically focuses on the drawn senior debd of the Group [refer to nole 1%) net of cadh, which ot
28 March 2020 wos £297.3 milion [£358.0 milion of senior deb! pius £86%9.4 milion of RCFE, net of cash lexcleding

escrow) of 13001 millicn) was £35.9 million highe: 1honr the priot year ending balance of £266.4 millon.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Cash

Borrowings

As at 28 Morch 2020, the Group hod cosh and cosh equivalents of £139.1 million {201%:
L£99.0 milion]. including escrow accounts which are held tor use prmarily in connection
with speciic preductions. The Group ciso hod additiona! availatzle taciities of £5.6 milion
12019: £75.0 milion]. The cash balance increased Ly £40,1 milicn 'n the penod, of which

trealy avoilabie cash incregsed oy £38.4 milion.

£m

Operating cosh fiows 62.2
Investing cash Hows {52.2)
Frnoncing cash fows 285
Net cash flows 38.5
Impact ot fareign exchange 1.é
Movement on cash balance 401

Fnoncing cosh flows inciude deobt drawdowns of £6%.4 milion 1o mprove rmmediatc
liquidity ot the pusiness, net of inance leose and snori-term credit faciity repayments of

2180 mikon. ond interest pa'c of £22.% milon.

The Gioup has lolal avoiable boank [ocilities of £433.0 million, of which £5.46 milion remains

undrawn af the pericd end,

The senior debt is sceoured by @ deberture over the magority of the assets of the Group.
The senior facilktics cgreement glsa requires the Group to comply with certan covenants,

As at 28 March 2020, the Group was in compliancze with its covenants,

The Group ako has olher debt itemns, which ore secured cgairgd the asels of is
sharehalder, of L84 4 rylicn (2019 L82.6 millon). Interest i nan-cash saying and aooiuses
ot a ‘otal izle of UBOR plus 1.5%. Thet debl s secuied over the assets of the Group's
snrareholder, and the Tocilty expires i 2023, Trere is a finance leose cieditor of £177.2

million [2019: £82.7 rmiflion].

The mcturty of the debt is smownin notes 19, 20 and 27 to the fnancic! statements.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FY21 will be significontly gffected by the COVID-19 pandemic, with ine majority of our verues around the

ward potenticly closed at least until December 2020,

Although we believe thal our business wil not be impacted in the long run fram the COVID-19 pandemic, we
hove conducted on impairment review of our assels in the contexd of petential short-ferry implicctions. The
assets with the highest risk of impairment ore production assels, where clthough the intellectual property
confinues 1o have value in the long run, the volatiily of when each preduction might be oble 10 retur te the
stage, the cost of o relaunch, as well os the demand scenarios of cudiences has peen reviewed in the light
of the risks of COVID-1%. Based on this assessment as of 28 March 2020, we hove impgirec cur productich
assets by £13.1 milian. Depending on the re-apening challenges ircluding the length of closure and ithe
uncetcinty of audience demond. there may e o rsk of fursher impairment in FY21 however, ¢ reasanable
eshmate cannct be mage at tis time. We rave taken aodveontage o the UK Government's Jab Retention
Scheme, which cllowed us to cortinue o employ o great number of aw stoff, whilst reducing the tinonciol
burden onr our business, In July 2020, we fook the decision to begin a redundaoncy consultalion, which led to
the reduction in the number of our staff trom August 2020. This decision was difficult 1o take but was a necessary
acticn ot the direclors ocne shareho!dens to profect the ongeing nature af e busingss. In Germony. we have
placed the mojority of our emp'oyees on the Kurzarbeit progrom, where the governmeni provides on “incomsa

replocement” rate ot 63-67% of the employee's salary.

Cur teams continve to c.osely monitor this everchanging sittation, and we are confident thel once our venues
hove re opened, we wil see a resurgence in allerdonce. os the pent up demand *or live entertainment can
e reglsed, As ¢ business, we are Zlregdy planning for this oppenunity, ang are exciled 1o welcome back

visitors iy lorge: numbers.

Subseguent to the year end. the directors have continued 1o seek alternative sources of finarce. On 11
September 2020, the shoreholders of the Group have signed o definitive agreement to secare funding which
isintended for the Group. As of the date of these financial statements, negotations remain ongoing with the

Group's sharehiolders as to the extent and timing of tunds thot wil ce mode availole 1o “he Group.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The strong lundamerital that underpin the theatrical industry combined with the quality of ou porfiolio of
venues contiinute 1o the Direciors’ confidence in the long ferm grow:h of the busness in furue years. In order
to withstand the curent chatlenges of COVID-19, the Groug will continue to judicicusly monitor its cost bose
in orden to reduce s kquicily requitements whikt ensuing that we cre adequately pregared for o speedy

retuin 1o cperaticns.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises fhe importance of it environmenta: responsibilities. monitars ity impact an the
ervironment, and designs and implements appropriate polcies to minimise any damage that migh! be

caused by the Graup’s activities.

As reported in the 2019 annual report, venues ore required 1o complete their own Project Blockoot surveys af
least annually. The project identifies overnight enorgy waste issues and engages with senior monagement,
venue stiaff and the Group's Environmental Ambossadors to impiement simgle “switch off” solutions. Results of
the surveys highlighl cortinued installkticr of LED bulbs. including sensor condrol, with some  venues
progressing 1o quarterdy mini-blockout surveys. In the US, the Lyric Theatre and Kings Theotre, both use LED
bultss inlobhies and the guditorium, There are progrommed night modes around the venues torecuce energy
consumption, Procecural ond tehovicural change remains the focus for continual improvement for enerqy

efliciency.

Tne UK Facilities team aelivered ¢ returbishmert ot our Charing Cross Rood office, which provided increased

seating capocity and lowered the energy usage as o result of switching to LED fighting.,

O Peeople
Number of employeess gt 28 March 2020 Women Men Total
Seelrln S the 2o G 0Ny ’ 4 5
e ten o ~oncgement 4 40 44
Erp syvee: LIV R 6419

The Group compiies with alt reievent legislalion including those specilicaliy targeled ol preventing
discrimination. Such principles are embedded through the crganisation by the requisite policies. The Group
is committed o ensuring the health, sofety and welfcre of s employees s far as s reascnably procticable.
The Group seeks to ensure that statutory duties are me* ot gil times and that it cperates effective health and

safety monagement.

ne Group's policy is to consult ond oiscuss witn employees, through unions, staft councils, meegtirgs anc
company-wice surveys, matters likety 1o affect employees’ interests, Informeation on matiers of concern to
cemployeesis given throggn informatior Luleting and reports which seek to achieve a common awareness on

the part of all employees of the financicl Gne economic foctors cfecting the Groun's performance.

Tre Group contirues torun its "Be @ Stor’ and “Be a Star Manager” fraining programmes, focusing ar Front cf

House ord Box Office stotf from when trey join the Group, developing tneir skills 1o improve customer

experience, and further olohg the ling, the key gspects of pecple managemert, Tne Group also runs a twe

year "Rising Stor” programme for some of our highest potential junior stoff as wel as o leodership course tor
s



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

senior managers “Leading tighis” In FY2Q0, we lnunched our vxth conort of Rising Stars. and o third Lecding

Lights class.

Tne Group's policy is 1o recruit disablea workers ‘or those vacancies that they are able to fil. Al necessary
assistance with initial training courses is given, Once employed. a coreer plan s developed so s to ensure
sultebie opportunitics for each disabled persor. Amangements are made, wherever possinle. far retraining
empioyees who become disabled 1o enable them o perlorm work icentified as appropriate 1o their apftudes

and ahilities.

We contfinue 1o support interrai engagemen! intiatives such os international Woamen's Day, Pride ond Men!al

Health Aworeness week, with more oeople getting involved in all geographies,

Social and Communily Involvement

The Groug recognises “hal regional theatres, both in the UK and USA, are reoted in the heort of their local

commutities,

Many of the UK regionol theotres have Crestive Leoming departments which iake o leading rcle in
confributing to the sociol cohesion of the'r communities in parinershie with chadties, frusts ane orgonisations
natorwide, inC uding several local authorities ond further education partners. Over the course of a year,

Creative Learning can beast mere than 79 000 paticipants ¢ al ages and abilities throughout the UK,

People of o wide variety of ages and abilities participale in the Group's Creative fearning activities. Ofien
inspired by the praoduchions at venges, these can inchide workstogzs with visiting companies, bockstage tours
and pre-stow falks, and also Youlh Theohres, summer schocols and classes for adolls, in addition 1o this, rary

regiora’ venues are usesd for several weeks a yeor by local amateur produchon componies.

On Broodway, Lyric Thegtre hotts on autism idendly peformanrce of Harry Potter and tne Cursed Chila,
cnfghtening more than 200 children ond adal's whic are alagnosed with an autism spectrum disorder or ather
sensifivity ssues and their families ond friends, Farinering with Theatre Development Fund (TOF], slight
adjustments ko the production have been made sa that the show iy presented in a faendly, supportive
ervironment. Hudson Theaotre hosts the 52nd §t. Proiect at a peformance of David Byrmme’s Americon Utopio,
Founded in 1581, the 52nd Street Project is o community-bases orfs orgonizotion, with ¢ missien o bring
tagether kids from Hel 's Kichen in fMonhatian with theater protessionols tc create onginal theater oflered frec
to the goneral public. Tecrogers from the orgorizehon's schgwiting group enjeyed the show ond weore
delightediy surprised by o “Meet & Greet” with David anc the entire tond ofer the performance. The evening
alsg served ot o funcrgiser for the Pracct where maney raised woud support the beloved non-profit

orgonizction.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Strotegic Report has been prepored solely to provide information 16 sharehalders ta assess how ihe
directons have performed their duty to promate the succest of the Group. The report cordains cerfain forward-
lcoking statements, which are made by the directorns in good faith based on the infarmafion availogle fo them
at the tirme thot the report was signed, but are subject toinherent uncertainties underying any ferward-looking

information ono ¢s such shew'd be freared with coufion.,
APPROVAL

This report was apmeved and aulhorised for issue by the Board of Diectors on 23 September 2020 and

signed on its behalf by:

ShanMoe Teo

Director



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

RESPECT OF THEIR PERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITK SECTION 172(1)
COMPANIES ACT 2004

The Boarct of Direciors of Internations Entertainment Holdings Limiteg consider, both indiviguolly and together,
that they hove ccled in the woy they consider, in geod faith, would be most likely to promote the success of
the Group for the benefit of its stakeholders as o whole (havingregaord o the stakeholders and matters set out

inseclion {721} (@ f) of the ACt] inihe decisions token during the period ended 78 March 2020,
S172(1) A "The likely consequence ol any declsion in the long term”

Tne Directors have taken the decisions that they telieve best support [EH's strategic cmbitions, More

informetion can pe found under Future Developments' on page 8,
$172(1) B "The interest of the Group's employees”

The Directorns recognise that [EH empioyees are fundamenial cnd core to our business and the delivery of our
strateqic ampibons, An annual ernployee 'Company Day’ deliverec n London provioes o briefing on the
Group's petformoance and allows individuals o raise guestions ang concems, The Group monitors ity
emnployee's commitment 1o s guiding fromework by asking members of senior management o suomil an

an-ugcl declaration confirmierg whether they have compied with the Group's Code of Conduct.

It any emp'oyee wishes 1o highlight any potentiol breaches 1o the Code of Conguct, they con contact the
insenendens whist eblowing services provider and o tormal investigation tollows, with anonymous reporting to
e Audt Cormmittes. Annoedl emp.oyee engagement surveys are performed o highligh™ areas of
imprevement in commuanication of the Group's purpose. The Boord cansicers the results of all employee
ergagement surveys a good barometer of the worktorce's contidence in the Group's strategic direction,

optimism in the ‘Uture and coreer cpportunities,
More infaormation can be foung under "Qur People’ on page 16,
$172(1) C "The need to toster the Group's business relatienships with suppliers, customers and others™

Tre Group's steketoldeny are customers. procucers, subpliers, emaloyees, sharehalders and lenders cnd the
Boord recognises the need to requiary review the identity of ity slakehelders as il mokes cecisons, The Board

pramaotes accountebilily ang ensporency with of vigkeholgers.
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The Group's funcamenta! belief in promoting the public good is demonstrated ond supported by out Senicr

Leadership’s active engogemen across industny bodies and our stakehgolder community,

The Group tracks customer satisfoction in several ways. A comprehensive Mystery Shopper Programme is in
place with regular vists to ab UK venues providing scores ond proctical feedback acress Customer
Engogement, Service Excellence, Thealre Presentation and Seling Skils. This process is run by on external
company o ersure independence, The findings are used 1o impreve customer engogement with knowiedge
peing shareg ocres: all of our business, Onling we continuously reck and report on customer intercctions ond
sentiment across sccial media, In August 2020 owr Trust Pilot score reached 4.2 stars out ¢of o possibie 5 and

70% of the overal reviews rate us as 'Excellent” or 'Great’,

The Group produces Gender Pay Reporting ong Poyment Practices and Performonce Reporting, both of
which are published externally, The additional analysis required to conduct this repoting has highlghted some
oreqs on which the Group needs to imprave. The Group welcomes these changes as it is iooking to constontly
improve in its engogement with gl stakeho'ders. The Group communicates openly with the Choir of the
pension trustee. who is independent of the Group. The trustees comprise individuals nominated by both the
pension scheme members and the Group. These reiationships are key 1o ensurng that the gecisions made by

both the Group and the scheme reflect the interest of dll stacehoiders.
$172(1) D “The Impac! of the Group's operations on the community and the eavironment”

The Directors recognise the importance of their environmen:al responsibilities. More dgetails can be found

unger ‘Ervirorments| matters” on page 16 and 'Community Invoivement” an page 17,
$172(1) E "The desirability of the company maintaining a repulation for high stondards of bysiness conduct”

The Group hos zero folerance for moadem siavery, brinery ana otrer forms of cormuptior. We implement ana
erforce etfective systams to counter modern slavery, bribery arnd comupticn and have interno! policies in
place to educate our employees about how 1o recognse and deal with these issues so as to ensure

compliance with lgws,
We: remain commitied to combalting maoermn siovery, sibery and conuplion By:

- Auditing oUr sUpp'y chains;
- Training our steff 1o recognize “hese issues;

- Manitoring potential risk across owr business.

wWe have a dedicated whistichblowing service for aur employecs ta report misconduct or unicthical proctices

and have a policy which ciearly sets out how members of steff canraise ony concerms which they may have.
Deatails of our coce of conduct and modem vavery con be lound on the ATG website:
Attps:fiwwoa clg couk/corporcte-information

Mo fweee sla o, /ato-mosern-cgyerny- anc-toman- a1 etficking-stolement

20
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$172(1) F “The need to acl lalrly as between members of the company”

At every Board meeting, the Directors review with the management feam. fhe progress against sfrategic

priotities ond the changing shape of the business portiolio.

Tris collaborctive approach by the Board, logether with the Board's cpproval of the Group strotegy. heps it

10 promiote the long-tenm succes of ihe Group. Boald decisians are 1aken againgt the backdrop of what it

considers tc be in the best inlerest of the long-term financial success of the Group and its stckeholders,

including shorehaiders, employees. the community and environment, our suppiiers ond customers.

Principal decisions

We outline some ot the principal decisions mase by the Board over the year and explain how the Directors

hove considered various stokeholders over the course of decison-maoking.

~D

Hasry Potter Hamburg

Tre Boord cpproved the reflurbishment of pur thealre in Hamburg in orgern 1o convert o rom a one
nighter muse venpe fo a theglre capable of housing long running sit down musicals and ploys. The
Board cho gpproved thot the first groduction for the Homiurg theatre would be the play Hairy Potter
and the Cunsed Chiid. As ¢ groundbreaking shiow, the Boora comsideres it important to be obile 1o
make this ploy avoilable to non english speakers. German speoking fans are atle to altend the show
which is presented in German without having to travel to olher regions. The members of the Board
were satisfied that the refurtishment and hosting of the show wouid result in along-term pos'tive elfec:
for the Group and would bing with i furlher oppart anilies for growtn by enhancing our reputation as
a producer anc venye sperater. Tne Boord also considered the impact of the show o its employees,

nofing that a new long running show such ay this woud create more job epoortunities for staff,

Harry Potter Tokyo

Tre Boord approved the vertuie 1o partner with our key Jopanese counterpars fo present Harry
PoHer andg Trhe Cursed Chila in Tokyo in Japarese. The 8oard considered il irmportant te be able (o
make Inis play available to the large Tanbase in Japar:. The members of the Board were sahsfied that
the procucing of the show would resu)® in g long-term positive effect for the Group ang would bring

wilt it Toniher oppocturities for growth by improving our relations wtn parness in the Jopanese morke!.

In-house FLB development

i 4 of our venues in the US, we previously engaoed o inid-party operator to provide F&B services,
Tre Beord consigersd it prosent 1o brng this ope:afion in-howse. Binging the operelions in-nouse hos
allowe ws "o make use of econamies of scole in terms of purchosing which drivens returns for
sharetiolcers and hias the potential fo recuce aod for customsns whishmproving the senvice offerng
in terms of the range and auclly of products Ina! we are aole 16 provide, This nas abo allcwed The
Group to create funer synerges with: thie existiag verue tearms in those venuges making 1 easier Tor

veEnue: o monoge Ineic owre budges.
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4. The development and roll-out of our new fickefing front end system known os Bolt
As ane-commerce business it is important 1o continue 1o evolve to retain customers. The members of
the Board were satisfied thal the development and reli-out of the Bolt platform was an important step
far the Group to fake to improve the user experience for our custemers. Improved conversion rales as
aresdlt of the improved user expenence would in tum drive higher returns tor our producing partners

and our shareholders,

5. Introduction of a Chlef Security Information Officer
As on e-commerce busingss which hondles large volumes af customer dota, it was deemec prugent
to appoint a Cniet Secunty Information CHicer to continue 1o build on tne (T security programs thot
are currently an-going within the business. The memopbers ot the Board were safisted that the

appeintment would resu | in a long-term gositive etfect for the Group. Key consigerations included:

- Ensuring security of customer Qato

- Reirforcing contidence in gur sysiems for cur partners

- Mmitigating secunity fisks and data breaches which con damage the brand and reputetion of our
business which could uitimately depress earnings *or sharehclders, onc

- Ensuring thot o cutture of security and awareness is embedsded across cur busness and in

porticutar for empicyess who are the gors and eyes of our business.

4. COVID-1% Pandemic Response
As ol the migddle of march 2020, lockdowns in the UK, Germany ana fhe USA had been imposed by
treir respective governmenis. This action in the UK whilst token one week prior fo the government
imposed UK-wide lockdown, was deemed prudent and necessary in order o help control the spread
of COVID 19 and protect the health and safety of cur employees, customers. oroducing partners'

company ard crew and confraciors who enter our premises,

In response to the COVID-1$ Pandentc and prior to our closure on 17 Marcn 2020, the Board had
already tosked its Business Cortinuity Committee to focus on implementing our husiness cortinuity
plans. The pre-closure actions implementes by the Business Continuily Committes ensured thal all
non-vandse based work coudd continue remotaty including our contoact centes which tove been key

to maintaining contact with our affected custormers.

Tris commirtes cardinues 10 waork on crisis management ana key decision making in order (o ensure

trest our Dusiness remicning robust despite 1he chalenging climste we continue to operate in.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Mark Cornell. Chief Executive Officer

Mark Comell was aopaonted Group CEQ of the Ambassedor Theatre Group in May 201 4. Pricr to ths he was
managing Director of Setheby's Furope onag preceding that, spent 10 years at LYMH. including President and
Chief Executive Olfficer of Moet Hennessy USA ong Chief Executive Officer of Krug Champaoane, Mark hes
vast experience in managng iarge organisations, as well as successtully lecding consume!-oricntated brands

in the UK, Europe and the USA,
Anthony Ball, Non-Executive Chalrman

Antheny Ball bocame Chairman of Intemational Entertoinmaent Holdings Limited in Decemiser 2016 and has
Deen o senion adviser of Providence Equity Partners since 2013, He has had ¢ long ond successful coreer in
tne media and endertainment industies in the UK ang internationally, as chairmaon of Kobe! Deutschiand from
2005 to 2013 ond as CEO of BSkyB. the fargest pay TV broadcaster in Burope. Prior to this. he was the CEO of
tne Nevsrs Corporalicn/tinerty Meaia joint verture, Foxfliberty Networks, which inCiuged the FX Netwaorks, Fox
Sports Net and over 20 1egional sports channels throughout the U S, He s a non executive direcion of BT Group
and chairmen of Portiand Communicatiens. Anthony received a MBA from Kingston University and has been

awarded honorary docioraies from poth Middleses University and Kirgston University.

Sinisa Krnlc, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Pariners

Sin‘da k¢ 15 o directar at Providence Ecuity Portners, based in Longor and is responsible for European tox
structuning and complichce. Priar *¢ joining Providence in 2007, S'msa workes at Deloitte for nne years and
most recently served os 0 direcion in the mergers ang ocquisitions tax group, Sinfsa rece’ ved o Master of Pnys'cs

trorm Oxtord University,

David Leigh, Non-Execulive Director

Devic Leigh joines ~he international Erterfairment Holdings Limited boare ©s o non-executive director in
October 2015, He is CEO af Alexander mann Solufions, a raie he has held since Novembier 2019, Prior 10
joining Alexander Mann, David was CEQ af Siudy Greup, and phior to that was CEQ of SHL. Prio: to SHL, he was
or the Execulive Committee of Groupe Stena, with responsibility tor Business Process Qutsourcing. David's
earlier backoround was in private equity [iIFormaticn Group, a joint venture between Goldman Sachs, General
Atlantic Partners and the Boston Consulting Groug], consulting {(McKinsey & Cof and low [Herberl Smth).

avic hes ar MA In Social and Political Sciences rom Cambricge Universty and a post-graduate legal

qualificsticn frem the Collepe of Law, Longor.
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ShanMae Teo, Chiel Financlal Officer

Before joining the executive teamin June 2014, Shanioe wos @ non-execulive director of the Company and
a direclor at Provigence Equity Portners. Prier to joining Providence Equity Partners in 2007, ShanMae was o
consultant at Bain & Company in Londen, where she focused on projiects for private equity ond corporcte
clients in industries including communications and information services, consumer products angd utiities, Prior
lo Bain, she was witn M/C Venture Pariners, o venture capite! firm focused on communicatians services
investments, Previcusly, SharMae worked at Acero and Saiomoen Smith Barney, ShanMae received a Master

of Business administration from INSEAD and a Bochelor of Science from Boston Colepe.
Roberl Sudo, Non-Executive Direcloy, Providence Equity Pariners

Robert Sudo s ¢ monaging direcior ¢t Provicence Equily Pariners. He iy alo a director of Bite, Closer $ill Media,
HSEZ4, Mashiovil and Voiio Limiteo, Prior to joining Providence Equity Pariners in 2004, Robert worked as aon
analysl for Geldman Sachs in mergers ang acauisitions and corporate finance. He received a Diptema in

Business Admeristration from HAL Leiprig Graduate Schoo of Monagemeni,

Andrew Tisdale, Non-Executive Director, Frovidence Equily Pariners

Andrew Tisdode is a mangging director of Providence Equity Partners. He i also o drector of Crime
Commuricetion, Closer $lil Media and HSE?4, Prior 1o joining Provicence Equity Partners in 2008, Andrew wos
gonal co head of the media ond commumications group ord a member of Morgan Staniey's maragement
committee for investment barking, Durng his 18 yeor tenure ot Morgen Stenley, Andrew hela various roles
within invesiment banking, inciuding co head of the media ond communications group for North and Scuth
Amercao and. subsequerntly, the same role for Furope, the Middie East ond Africe, He alse led Morgan Stanley's
investment banking activities in Brazil. Andrew received o Master of Business Administration from the Dniversity
of North Coroling of Chape! Hilk and o Bochelor of Arts from vandoerbilt University, He curently serves on the

Board of Agvisors for the Yale School of Drome.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

The Dieclors present their repon and the cudited financial siotements for the period ended 28 March 2020,
Tre directors consider the annual reporf and financial sfatements 16 comply substantizlly with ol aspects of

the "Guidelines for Disclosure and Transcarency in Private Equity”.
DIRECTORS

Ihe ditectors whc served duind the petiod arad e e Jdale of sigeing e Enaacial statements {orcont as

noted) were:

Anthony Ball
pMark Cornell
Simio Krnicd
Dawd Leigh
Robert Sudo
Shantvae Teo

Andchrew Tisdate

Tre bicgraphies of the curren® directors are presenied on poge 23 ta 24,

e Group is maiority cwned by Provicence Bquity Pariners through its investen® funds, Provigence Equity
Pariness VI A LP and Provigence VI Glotbao! Holdings 1P, Providence Equity Fortners §s @ glotg! alternclive
investment firm established in 1989 focused on educaticn, megio, communications, and information
investmerts. The firm's private equity platform specialises in sector ‘ocused buyout rensoctions and growth

capilalinves ments, Pravidence Equity Partners made s invedment in the Group through 18 Luxce $.0.0,

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company hos made qudlitying third-party indermmity provisiaons lor the benell of its directors which were

made during *he peried ond remainin force of tne aate of this report,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Tne loss tor the period ofter 1oxation omountes 1o £25.2 million {2019 £31.5 million).

No dividends hove been poid dunng the curert perind [2019: £10% millan). N dividends ore proposed ir

respect ic the cunrent penod.
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GOING CONCERN BASIS

As atl the date of approval of these inancial stiatements, the impac! of COVID 19 on the Group's rading
continues 1o be ossessed and is subject to rapid y changing extermal foctors, including evolving governmaent
responses 1o control the spread of The virus and ongoing changes in customer sertiment towards allending

live entertcinment events,

Due T the meagsures tcken by governmends worldwide 1o control the COVID-19 outbreax, the live
ertertainment industry came to a stands:ill from the secand halt of March 2020, with all odr venues being

clgsed for aoperations.

Prior 1o mic-Morch 2020, the Group had positive traging with & programming schedule of highly successtul
shows suppording strong operctional performance ocross al of its temtories. We were in a strong financial
positior with ol covenants under the terms of cur logns being met. Unfortunately. the closure of our veaues
and the absence of o firm re-cpening date has resulted in a sharo drop in turnover. Our marketing services
businesses are also experiencing o drop in turnover as mony of our customers are in the ive entertainment
and cuitural & hertage sectors [museums, galleries, zoos); all of which hove had restrictions on their opercticns
during COVID-19, Whilst there has been a coressonding reduction in variobie costs os o result of the closure

of our venues, the Group continues to have fo tund s fixed cost base.

Inorder to preserve licuidity and mitigate the impact of the fixed cos® base duning the crisis period, the

Direciors of the Group have foken the following measures:

- created a Busingss Continuity Committee, which hos peoen focuses an crisis management and key
decision moking:

- ongong engagement with all our stakeholgers, including our sharehclders and lenders:
inplernentation of bi-weekly cash flow forecash o mianage iquidity at o granuior ievel throughout
te Group,;
rotust scenacrio mades Eng to drive decision making:

- proochve mzonogement of rescheduing shows fo future dates to minimize the level of show

cancellations and theretore refunas;

a sigrificard element ol the Group's codt base relates to wages and salanes, Wnere possible, and
subject to iocal regulotions, «tafling leveis and hours worked have been reduced. Employees,
incluging senior managemeant and directors, have olso undertoken salary sachifices. Government
support both in the UK in the form of the lob Retentor Scheme and in the Germany in the form of the

Kurzatheit program bias been utiised to oflsel stalling costs that continue 1o be incuned;
- copital expend ture has been rephased and pooritize d an essental maimtenance: ond

- qactions have been taken 1o detor o0 permanchtly redece gayments of fixed coss ond unpaid
varalble ces's trom the pre-crsis petiod. including agreements with Government fiscol cuthorities cn

cengir ‘ox payments.
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Sensifivities are run to reflect different scenarios for when theatres might be able to re-open during the 12-
monih period from the date of the cpproval of these tinanciol statements. This is done to identify nsks to liquidity
and covenant compiance and enable management o formuicte appropriate ond timely mitigation

strategies.

tsed an these forecasts and other factors which may impact the Group's future liquicity position, the
Treciors have concluged that it s appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.,
However, given ihal the COVID 19 stuation confinues to evalve, there exists a material uncerainty related fo

everis of conditions thot may cast significen?! doubt about the Group's ability to continue as o going concern,
The events or conditions are as foliows:

- Trefundingrequirement tor the next 12 months ranges signiicontly based on the re-opening scenarios
tor theatres, in terms of re-opening dates. potenticl restrichons on how our venues can operate (ie.
social distancing requirements). ona the level of gemand from augiences. Al present, govemmeants
in cities where we operate continue to advise that thealricol venues either should remain closed ar

orly allowed to be open viluatly or with socicl distoncing measures;

Tre Group holds £433 mlion of committed fadilities which ore subject 1o nel everage and ligudty
cavenards, There 1s a reducen sk of defaull on the net leverage covenarl. due to a recent
amendment which alows o0 g adustinent 1o nel leverage covenant tesling whist theatres ore
closed by goverimeants dus 1o COVID 19, However, the Group is also subject 1o a minimam iguidity

covenant.

The Group has net curent haciities of £168.7 milion {2009: £3 17 ¢ milicn) anc net assets of £4%.0 milion (2019
£69 9 millior| of *he period-end date, Net cuntent digtiitics include asvanced ticket sales of £142.4 milion
(219; £139.0 milion), which represenis ticket sales for shows that have yet to mature with © poriion of fhis
amount due to flow to the Group. Excluding cdvance ticke! sales and non-refundable gronts, the Group has
lizhifties cue within one year of £187.0 milien [2019: £124.1 milion} which are exceeded oy cunent assets of

£206.5 milion, {2019: £163.3 milion).

The Group holds cash reserves, excluding reguired escrow occounts, inits ank accounts of £69.8 millicn os at
tne date of cpprovel of these finonciol statements. The Group has receivec an eguity commitment of £50
million from its snarchaolders, of which £30 milian nas been drawn, withh £20 million of undrawn avaiability. If we
aro gliowed ¢ cpen in Decomper 2020 without any social Gistancing and ficket saigs reboundg in Novemiber,
tne Group will have sufficient cash ta meet the minimum ligudity covenant. |f our re-opening is deloyed

beyond December with a comrasponding delay in ticket sales. odditicnal funding would be reguired,

1 order to mitigate tre risks highlghled above, the Direclors are engaging with "he Group™s shareholders cna
lenaers 1o expiore funding solutions. As of Seplember 11, the shareholde: of the Gioup have sgned a
defiritive agreemenl to secure furdng which is intended for the Grous. As of the date of the report. there is
no comm tmant of funds to the Group but regotictions with 1he shareholders ore cdvancec and the Dirgctors
hove o reasanable expectation that these will cenclude shordly. IF the re-opening date for theolies without
soria dstancing dae o COVID-19 s geloyed bevond December 2020 and ir the unlixe y scenario where

additora funding does not occw, *here s atigk that the Group may breach the minimum fquidily covenant
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during the 12 month going concern assessment period. i 1here is a breoch of such covenoant and such breach
is not cured by the shareholders pursuant te the cure dght under the financing documents, then the lenders

could reguest that the loans be repaid.

Notwithstending this moterial uncertainty, the Board's cofidence in the Group’s forecasts, s obility 1o
manage its [quidity reguirerments, the stalus of the current funding discussions, confidence in the continued
support of our shareholders, and the long term patential of the business forms the: basis of our preparation

of the finanial statements on a going concerm osis.
MATTERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Certoin matters (post bolance sheet events, future developments, principat rsks ond uncertainties ana
employee matters) ore discussed within the Strategic Repont ond incorporates inte the Drectars Report by

reterence.
AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is ¢ direcTor at the date ot apprevel of this cnnual report confirms that;

- 5o far oy the direcion is aware, there is no relevant cudit inforrmabor of which the Company s auditor i

unaware: ard

- the drector has taken all the steps that he/fshe ought 1o hove taken s a director in order to maxe
himself /frersel aware of any relevont oudit infomotion and 1o establsh that the Company's audito s

oware of that intormation.

Tris confirrnation iv given and should be interpreled in accordance wik the provisions of <418 of ihe

Compranias At 2006,

Deloitte LLP have exnressed their willingress to continue inoffice as auditor ard o resolution to reappoint them

will be proposed ot the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,

This repart was approved ond authansed forissue by the Boord of Direciors on 23 September 2020 and sighed

on s behotf:

ShanMae Teo
Director

Registered office
28 31 George Street, Londan
WIS 2FA, United Kingcom
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The drectors are responsible for preporing the Annuat Report and the financiar statements in accordance

with cpplicable low and regolotions.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financicl statements for each fnancicl period. Under that taw
ihe directors have elected to prepare the finoncial stotements in eccordence with internationel Fnancial
Reporting Stananards (iFRSs) os agdopted by the European Urion. Under compony law the direciors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give ¢ frue and fcir view of the stote of
affairs of the Companry and of the profil or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these fingngial

stoternents, international Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

- propeny select and opply accounfing policies;

- present informotion, incluoding accounting policies, in a monner thot provides refevant, reliable,
cemzarable ang understandable information:

- provice additionol cisclosures wher compliance with the specitic requirements in IFRSs ore insufficient
to enchbe users to understand the mpact of particular transoctions, other events and conditions an
the entity's financta position and fincnciol performonce:. and

- make cn assessment of the Company's ciiity 1o confinue as a gong concern,

The direcion arerespomnsibile for keeping cdecuote accounting records that are suffic’ent (o show ord expizin
tne Company's fransactions and aisciose with reasonable Gocuracy ot any fime 1ne financial postion of the
Comporny ond enath them 1o ensyre 1hat the finoncio statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
Thesy are alo responsitle for saleguarding the assets of tre Company and hence for taking reasonable steps

for the prevention and detection of froud and othert ineguiarities.

Tre directors are responsible for the mointenonce and integrity of the corporate and financiol information
inciuded on the Company's website. Legislotion in the Unitec Kingdom gaverrning the preparction ondg

dissemiratior ¢f financial stotements may differ trom legistation in other judscictions.
We confirm that 1o the beésd of aur knowledge:

- the financidl statemen's. prepared in occordance with the relevan financial reporting fromewori,
oive o truc and fair view of the assets, lisb'Fies, financicl posifion ond proft or iess of tho Company

ond the undertakings included in the consolidation tocen as o whcle;
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- the Strategic Repaort incledes aloir review of the develapment and performance of the business cnd
the pasition of the Company and the urdertokings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description ol the onncioa! risks and uncertainties that they face: ond

- the anrual report and finoncial statements, token as o whole. are {oir, balenced and understandable
and provide the information necessory for shareholders 1o cssess the Group's performance, business

model and strafegy.

Tnis responsibility stoctement was opproved by the Board of Directors on 23 September 2020 and is signed on

its peholf by:

Shanhioe Teo

Director

30



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the qudit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion;

- e financial stetements of infernational Entertainrment Holdings Limited {ihe ‘porent compary')
and its sussidianes (the "group’) give o true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the
porend company’s affzis as al 28 March 2020 and of the Groyp's loss for the perod then ended;

- the Group finonciol statements have been preperly prepared in accordance witn Intemaotional
financial Reporting Stondards (IFRSs) as adopled by the Eurepecn Uniorn:

- reparent compaony financiol stolements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
s odopted by the Fuopeon Union and o applied in occorgance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006: ond

- e fingnciol siciements have been prepared in cocordonce with the requitemerts of the
Companies Act 2006,

we have audited the financial datemenis which comprise:

the consolidated sfotement of comarenersive income:

the: consolidaied and porent comgany slatermenty of finandcic! position:
the consoidated ond porent company statements of changes in equity;
the comoidated s'atement of cash flows:

e refatad notes 1 o 31.

Tnc bnoncial reporting framewaork that has been applied in their preporotion is aopliceble kaw and IFRSs as
adopted by the Europeon Union ard, os regards the parent compary financial statements, as cpplied in

accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act 2006,

Basls for opinion

We conducied cur oudit in gccordance with Internationsl Stancard: on Auditing [UK) {I5As {UK)} and
applicobie taw. Our responsibilities under those stondorcs ore turther descrbec in the guditor's responsibilities

for “he audit of the ‘inancicl starements section of our report,

We ore independeal of the group and the parent company in cocordance with *he ethicatreqguirerments thot
are relevant 1o oo audit of *he finandial statements in the UK, incuding Ine Financiol Repoding Councit's fine
FRC's'| Bthica Stanoord, ond we have {ulfited our otfer ethicot responsisitiies in gooordenoe with these
requiremets. We believe thol the audit evidence: we have obilained is sufficient and appropricie 1o provice

0 D for Qur apiticn.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 1 in the financial ttatements, which indicotes that due 1o ire uncerainty driven Dy
the ongoing COVID-1% pordemic, the Group's future liquidty position and comaliance with its liquidity
covenant is uncertain, This is due 1o uncenomnty orounc venue re-opening dates, potential restrictions on how
the Group’s venues will be able to operate, and the level of demang tromr audiences. Tne Directors are
uncertaking negaoriations to rase additionz! funcing by December 2020, however this hos not been secures
at tne cate of cpproval of the financinl stotements. As stoted in note 1. these events or condlisons, along with
the otner matters as set forth in nete 1 to the tinancial stotements, incicate that o materal uncertcinty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's obiity 10 continue as o going concern. Cur opinion is not

quaolitico or otherwise modified ir respect of this matter.

Other inlormation

Tne directors are respensibie {or the other information. The other information comprises the information
inciuded in the annual report, other than the financial stetements and our guditor’s repaort thergon, Qe
ozinicn on the financiar staterments coes naot cover the other information and, except 1o the extent otherwise

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion theseon,

In connaction witn our audt of the financial stafements, our responsibiity is to read the other informotion and,
in goirng so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
oul knowiedge cbtained in the cudit or otherwise oppears o be materiaily misstoled. If we identity such
matendl inconsistencies or apporent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is o
matenal misstatement in the financiai stolements or o maoterial misstatemant of the other information. i, basec
on the work we have performed, we conclude thal there is o materic!l misstatemeant ¢of this other informacticn,

we arg requirec o report that tact.

We have nothing to report inrespect of these matiers.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more {fully in the direciors' responsibilities statement, the directors core responsible for the
prepa-ation of the financicl stoternents and tor being satisfiea that they give a frue ond falr view, and tor such
internal centrol as the direcors determine is necessary 1o enable the preporation of fnancial statements that

are free trom materizl misstatemant. whether due to fraud or eror.

tn preparing the financal stotements, the directors are responsibie for assessing the groug's and the porent
company's ohiity 1o continue s a going concern. disclosing. as applicable, matters reloted to gong concermn
and wsing the going concemn basis of accounting unless the directors gither intend to iguidote the group or

the parent comnpany of to cease operations, of have no realistic clternative bot to do so.
Audlior's responsibilities for the audit of the financial stalements

Our nhiectives am to oblain reasarable nsurence aboal whether the financior statemnen's as o whole e

free from matenial misstatement, whether due e froud or ence, and 19 issue en auditon's repas ihal includes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

odr opinion. Regsonable assuronee s ¢ high level of assurance, but 5 not G gucrardee nat an audit
conducted in occcordonce with 1SAs (UK} will olwoys detect o malerict misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements con arise from fraud or error and are cansidered material if, individually or in the aggregate.
they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisicns of users laken o the bosis of these

financial stolements.

A further descripption of our responsbiities for the cudit of the financial sicterments is locoted or the FRC's

website af: www fro,orguu/auditonresponsitilities. Th's gescription forms part of our audior's repaort,
Report on other legal and reguiatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

i our opinion. bosed on the waork undertaken in the course of “he audit

- the nformation given in the shrategic report ond the gireclors’ report for the fnoncicl yegor for which
the fnonciol statements are prepared is corsistent with the tinancicl statements: and
the stratedrc repart and the directars' repart have been repared in accordance with aoplicable

legal requirements,

in the light of the knowledge conc understanging of the goup ond of the parent company anc their
ecvironment obtaned in the course of the gudit, we have not }dertified any material misstatemenss in the

strategic report or the directors’ report.
Matlers on which we are required to report by exception
Unde- the Companics Act 2004 we o ¢ require? to report in respect of the following matters i in our opmion:

- adeguate gocounting records have not been kepl by the parent company, or reluins adequaie
for cur cudit have not beenreceived from branches not visled by us or
fhe porent company financial statements cre net in agreement with the accounling record: ond
refuons; or

- ceroir disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law gre not made: o

- we hove not received all the informahor end expianations we require for our qudit,

We have notiing fo repoart o respect of these mafters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

Use of our report

Tnis report is mode solely 1o the Comoany’s members, as ¢ bedy. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Pord 16 of
tne Componies Act 2004, Cur audit werk has been undertaken so that we might state to the Compeny's
members those matters we are requirec to state to them in an audilon's report and for no other purpose. 1o
tre fullest extent permitted by low, we do net accept or assume responsinility 1o anyone othet than the
Company end the Compony's members as a boay, for our oudit work, for 1his report, or for the cpiniors we

have formed.,

i

Helen Wilgmoan ACA {Secior Stetutory Auditor]
for and on behalf of Delo'tte LLP

Stelutory auditor

London

Jriled Kingdom

23 Seprember 2020
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAIMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Note 52 week 52 week
period penod ended
ended 28 30 March

March 2020 2009
£000 £'000

Revernue 3 474747 443,180
Cost of sales (189,248) [199.674)
Gross profit 287.49¢% 243.506
Administrative expenses {284 ,575) [214.810)
Share of results of assecicies and joint ventures 11 {702) (371}
Opercling orafit 4 2,222 28,325
Other gaoins and losses 4 - [17.249)
Fingnce income 7 1,344 1.3t4
Fingnce cosly & {37,473) [40,628)
Loss before fax {33.907) [28.238)
Taxathon 9 7,982 {3.266)
Loss for the perod (25,925) {31,504)
attribuicbie ic:
Treenicrs of the Comoony (25.925) [31.5G4}
Comprehensive income
Loss for the period (25,925) (31.504)
Nems tha! may be reclassified subsequently ta profit or
loss:
fxchonge differences on fronslation of foreign cperotions 5,195 9,622
flerns thal will not be reclossiffecd subsequentiy fo profit o
igss:
Remecsurements of post-employment benetil obligoton: 241 -
Total cemprehensive loss for the percd (20,489) (21.882)
Attriburabie 1o
Owners of the Comoany {20.489) [17.52¢)
Non-contratling interests - {2.356)
Total comprehernsive Igss for the pericd {20,489) (21.882)

All activity relzies to continung oporations.
Trere cre no moteral differences between the losces lor the perods disclosed above cnd theilr historical cost

equvaients, The cccomoperving noeles fom por of ond are 1o be reod in conjonclion witr these fingnoial

stoterments.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Consolidated Company
28 March 30 March 28 March 30 Ma-ch
2020 2009 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £000 000

invesimenis 10,31 4,354 4129 262,575 262,575
interests in associates and jeint veniures 11,31 1.51¢ 1,673 . -
Googwil 12 372,730 348,475 - -
Intangible assets 12 16,328 11,9245 - -
Property, plont ang cquipment 13 430,905 331,443 .
Delerred tax assets 22 11,567 4713 -
Non-currcnt trace and other receivakios 14 23,318 28.489 .
Non-current assets 850,724 751.087 262,575 202575
Inventones 14 1,044 1,262 - -
Investmenits in shaws i5 3,794 5511 -
Trade ard other receivabiles 14 82,554 57.560 . -
Cash and cash equivalenls 7 139,065 98,954 -
Cunent assets 206,456 163,289 - -
Total assets 1,067,180 914,374 262,575 242,575
fradc ard othor payables 18 260814 264,308 10,900 10,950
Bomowings 19 69,370 - - -
Obligations under fincnce lcases 20 19.474 4169 -
Provisions 21 25,483 12,4864 - -
Current liabilifies 375,143 281163 10,900 10,900
Net current lighilities (148,687) (117.874) (10.900) {10,900}
Bonowings 19 456,670 451,102 -
Obligations endor firnonce leases 20 157,706 85,522 -
Defened tax ichilities 22 28,699 26,656 -
Non-current Kabilities 543,075 £63.280 - -
Total liakilities 1,018,218 844,443 10,900 10,900
Nel assels 48,9462 69,933 281,475 251475
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIQOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Consolidated Company
28 March 30 Mmarch 28 Morch 30 March

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'C00 £'000 £'000
Share capito 23 262 262 262 267
Share premium accoun” 251,414 251414 251,413 251,413
Transiation resetve 27 483 22,288 -
Accumuioted deficit {230,197} {204.031) - -
Total equity aftributable to owners of the 48,942 69,933 251,475 251,675

Company

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contaned within section 408 of the Companigs ACt
2006 not to present ity own Statement of Comprenensive Income and related notes. The rewul! far the yeor

deat with in the financial statements of the Company was £nil [2019: £niY,

Tne financic staterments of were approved by ine Board of Direclors and authorisec for issue on 23 Septembet

2020. They were signed on its behal’ by

ShanMoe Teo
Registered Number 08769976

Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Forthe §2 Forthe 52

week week

period period

ended 28 ended 30

March March

2020 2019

£000 £000

Net cash generated from operating activities 24 62,235 45,685
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired - (54 841)
Acquisition of assets - (2.430)
Purchases of property, plent and eguipment {40.923) {19.1469)
Purchases of intangible assets {13.144) (9.352)
Non-cash movement on Leasehcld improvement disposal - {14.997)
Net investment in shows o S 1.855 {273)
Net cash used in investing activities _ _ (52,212) {101,082
New bank loans raised 69.370 100,000
Dividends paid - (10.200)
Repayments of borrowings - (9.074)
Repayment of obligations under fingnce legses {18.028) (4.753)
Interest received 27 1,220
Interest poid {22,G17] (7.616)
Financing fees paid - (5.057)
Net cash generated by financing activities S 28,447 64.318
Netf Increase in cash and cash equivalents 38,470 8721
Cash and cash equivalents ot beginning of peried 98,954 86,749
Nel increase in cash and cash equivalents 38,470 8521
Foreign exchange gain on cash 1,63% 3,284
Cash and cosh equivalents at end of period 17 139,065 98,956

There is no cosh held in the Compary and as such no Company Stotement of Cash Flows hove been

presentea,

Tre cccorpony:ng notes form part of and ore 10 be reac in canjurction with these finoncial statemen's.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

General information

internoticncl Entertanment Hotdings Limited fthe “Group™; is o privaie Compony Imied by shares,
incorporated 0 the United Kingdom under the Componies Act and is registered in England and Waies. The

address of the registered ollice ik 28 5t. George Stregt London, WS 2FA, United Kingdom,

The principal acliviies of the Company and its subsidianes [the Group] and the nalue of the Group™s

opatations are set outinin the strategic reports on pages 1o 22,

These financicr statoments are presented in pounds sterting becouse that s the curency of the primory

economic environment inwhich the group operates,
Adoplion of new and revised standards

Amendments to IFRSs thot are mandatorily effective for the current period

In tne curent year, fhe Group has applied omendments fo (FRSs and a new Interprefation issued by 1he
IMemnations) Acsounting Slandards Boordg (1ASE] thal are maondatenly effeciive lor an accounting peiod thal

begn: on o afler 1 January 2019,

In the ¢corrent vear, the Group was applied IFRS 14 [as isseed Dy the 'ASE in Jonuary 2014 that ks etfectve for
anrual periods thet begin on or after 1 Jonuary 201%. IFRS 14 infroduces new ar omended requirements with
respect 1o lense accoenting, It introduces significant changes 1o lessee accounting by removing the
distinction between operatng and finonce leose and requinng the recognition of o rignt-of-ute asset ond a

Ilease Fabiity at commencement for ail iccses, except for short-term leases ond leases of iow value assefs.

The date of initia! aeplication of IFRS 146 for the Group & 31 March 2019, The Group hos applied IFRS 16 usng

fhe smplified fronshion appraach, wilh ne restalerment of the comparative information.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective:

At the dote of authorisation of these financia staterments the Graup has not applied the tollowing new ond

revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet etfective:

- Armendments to AS 1 Classification of dabilities as cureny or Nore Curren?
Amendments to 1AS 3 - Relerence to the Conceptual Framework

- Amendments to 1AS 14 Property. Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use
Armendments 16 LAS 37 - Onerous Confraclts - Cosls of fulfiling a contract

- IFRS 16 - COVID-19 Related Rent concessions

- IFRS 17 - insurance contrachs

Arnual improvements to IFRS standards 2018 — 2020 ((FRS 1, IFRS 9, {FRS 16, 1AS 41)

The Directorns are currenty evalucting the impact of the adoption of af other standards, amenadments ane

interprefations but go not expect them o have a matenclimpact on the Group operclion or resulls,
1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements bave been prepared in accordance with inlernabional Finonoia: Reporting
Standaras [IFRS:). The finoncial siatements have ako been prenored in accordance with IFRSs cdepled by
tne Europearn Unicon and therefore the Gioup financial siolements comply with Alicle 4 of the EU 1AS

Regulaticn.

Tne Company has taken advantage of the exemption cont2inea within secticn 408 of the Componies ACt
2004 nat ta presentits own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related noies. The profit for the yvear

deaglt with in the finoncial statements of the Companry was Lnil {2019 Lnii],

Tre financial statements have been prepared on the lslorical cost Bosis, excepd for financia instruments
that are measured of fai vaiues af the end of each reporting period. as exglained in the accounting policies
brelow. Historical cost s generally based on the [air value of the consideralion given ir exchange for goods

and services.

Fair value is the pnoe that would e received to scl an asset of paid to ransfer o fability ‘in on ordeny
transacticn botween morket parficiponts at the measuremoent dote, regordicss of whether that price is
drectly observabice or estimated using anotner valuation technigque. In estimating the fair valoe of an asset
or a ligkiity, the Group takes into cccount the charocteristics of the asset or iobility if morket participants
would take those characieristics inte account when pricing the asset or liability at the meosurement datc.
Fair vaive for measurement and/or disclosure purposcs n these consclidated fnancial statements s
determined cn such a basis, except for shore-basen paymant fransactions tnat are within the scope of FRS
2. lcasing tramsactions that are within the scope of 1AS 17, and meosurements thet have some similaritic: to

fair value but are not fair value, sach as nes realiscbie voleo in (AS 7 o7 value inuse in [AS 34,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Qperating results

The operating results include tronsactiors up o ang including the Soturday on or preceding 31 March of

eqach pericd.
Going concern

As at the date ot approval of these financial statemenrts, the impact of COVID-1% on the Group's trading
cantinues to be cisessed and i tuiect to ropidly changing extarnal tactors, inrcluding evolving government
responses ta control the spread of the virus and ongeing chonges in customer sentiment towards ottending

live enteriainment evants,

Due 1o the measures 1aoken by governmenk worldwide o control the COVID-19 autbreak. the live
erfertainment ndusty came 1o g sandsil rom the second hall of March 2020, with all our venues being

closed for apearations.

Prior 1o mid-march 2020, the Group had postive troding with a orogramming schedule of tughly successiul
shows supparting shong operational performance across cll of its territories, We were in a strang financic
positior with al covenants under the terms of owr loans being met. Unfortunately, the closure of cur venues
and the obsence ol ¢ fiim e opening date nas tesulied in g snarp drep in tumover, Qur morketing services
DUsiNesses Ore o0 expenencing o orop in lumaover os many of our customers are e the live entertainment
and cultural & heritoge sectors [mussems. galeres, 7oos): al of which have: hod resttictions on their
operators during COVID 19, Whist there hos been o corfesponding reduction in variabie costs as a result

af the ciosure of our verues, the Group continues 1o hove to fund its fixed cost base.

in order 1a preserve figuidity ong mitigate the impoct of the fixed cos bose durng the crisis pedod, the

Drectars of the Graup has taken the following meossures:

- created a Business Continuty Comnmittes, which has been lacuied on crisis management and key

decision making:
- ongong engagement with all our sfakeholzers. including our sharefiolders and fenders;

- implementarion of bi-weekly cach tiow fcrecosts te maonage Fquidity of ¢ granular leve! throughaut
the Grovp,

« fobust seenario made 'ng to drive decision making:

- proochve managemers? of rescheduing shows 1o future dates 1o minimire he level al show

cancelaton: and therelore refunds:

- asigrificant ¢ cment of the Group’s cos® base relates to wages ond salarics. Waare possib ¢, and
subject to loco’ regulotions, staffing lcvels and nours worked have been reouced. Employoes.
inzuging senior menagement and dircctors have aso undcntcken salory sacefices, Government
suppor ot n tne UK ir the form of $ne Job Rerention Scheme and in the Germany 0 The “orm of

tre Kuzorooit progrom hos beon tilsed to offset stofing costs tha* cantinue 1o be incuTed:

- capila expendiure hoas been rephcsed and pratizes on essential mainienance: ond
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

- acliens have been foken to defer or permanently reduce payments of fixed costs and unpaid
variable costs fiom the pre-crisiy period, incluging agreements with Govermment Tsoal cuthocties

on certein tax poyments.

Sensitivities are ran ta refiect different scenarios for when theatres might be able to re-open durng the 12-
monih penod from the date of the approval o these financial staterments. This is done to identfy fisks to
iguidity and covenan® complionce ond enable mancgemert to formulate cppropriate and tmely

mitigation strategies.

Bosed on these forecasts ana other factors which may impac? the Group's tuture liquidity position, the
Direclors have concluded that it is apprapnate 1o prepars the financial stotemenis on a going concern
basis. However given that the COVIE-19 situalion confinues to evolve, there exisls a matenal uncertainy
related to events or conditons that may cast significant doubt about the Groun's ability 1o continue as ¢

goirg concern,
The events or conditions are as (ollows:

- e funcing roguirement for the next 12 months ranges significantly bosed or the re-opening
scenarnios for thegtres, in torms of re-opening dates, otential restrclions on how our venuees can
operate {i.e. social distoncing requirementsi, and the level of gemand from audiences, At present,
governments n citics where we oporate contirue o edvise thot theatncal venues either should

remain closed or only ollowed 1o He open virtually or with socicl distancing measures,

- Tre Group holds £433 million of committed tocilities which ore subject to net levercge and kquidity
caovenanis. There is o reduced risk o* gefault on the net leverage covenanrt, due 10 d recent
amandment which akows for on adjustment to net leverage caverant testing whilst theatres are
closad by governments due to COVID-19. However. the Group is also subject fo o minimum liquidity

coverant.

Tre Group has net corrent labilities of £168.7 mlion (2019: £117.9 millon) and net assels of £45.0 milion (2019
£6%.9 milion) of the period-end dofe. Net curen! iobilties inclade advanced licket soles of £142.4 milien
12019: £132.0 milion), whichk represents ficket sales for shows that have yel (o mature with a pooion of this
armount due 1o flow 1o the Group. Excluding advange ticke! sales and non-reflunaable gronts. the Group
hess liabilities cue withn one vear of L1870 milliory (2019 £124.1 milion) which are exceeded by corrent

assets of £206.5 miton, (2019 £1463.3 million].

The Group hialds cash reserves, excluding required escrow accounts, inits bank accounts of £69.8 milion as
at tre date of approval of these financizl statements. The Group has receives on equity commitment of
L£50 milion from its sharehaolders. of which £30 milion hes been drawn, with £20 milion of undrown avaiabiity.
it we cre allowed 1o open in December 2020 without any sociar distancing and ticket sales rebound in
Novembtern. the Groug will nave sullicient cosh to meet the minimum fiquigity covenant. If our re-gpenirg is
deloyed bovord December with o conesponding celay in ficket sales. addiiens! funding woulc be
requires,

In order to mtigate the risks highlignted above, “he Directors are engaging with the Group's shorehoiders

and iencers to explare tunding salutions. As of Septembaer 13, the shareho'ders of the Groug have signed ¢
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

defiritive cgreement to secure lunding which is intended for the Group. As af the dote of this report. there
is no commitrment of funds to the Group but negoefiations with the shareholders are advanced and the
Diectors have aremsonable expectafion that these wil conclude shotly. I the re opening date for theatres
without social disloncing gue to COMD 19 is delayed beyond December 2070 and in the unlikely scenario
where additional funding does rot cccur, there is arisk that the Group may breach the minimum liqudity
cavenant cunid the |7 month going cancern ussessment pericd. Fihare 5 o brooch of such covenant ond
such breach is not cured by the sharehoiders pursuant 1o the cure right under the financing documeants,

then the lenders could request thot the jearns be repod.

Notwithstonding this moteno! uncertainty, the Board's confidence in the Group's forecosts, its ability 1o
manage ifs Equidity reguirements, the status of the cure funding discussions, confidence in the confinued
support of our shareholders, and the iong tem potentiar of the business forms the basis of our preparction

of the fingncial stcfements an o going concerm oosis.

Basis of consolidation

Tne consobdo s Fnonciol stolements incorporaic the finonc ol statements of the Company ong contitics
coniralied by the Company Pis subsidianes). Contro' is achioved when the Company has the powr over
tneinvesice, | oxposed or hos rights, "o vorioh ¢ seiums from its invawvemenr! with the investee ond has the

ability to use its power 1o gffect s returrs,

The resuts of subsdiaries ccquires or disposed of dwing The period are nciuded ir the Comsolidarec
Statement of Comprehensive I~come from the gate the Company gains corliol untl the date wnen the

Compony ceases o conto' the sulosidiary.

Al irhegroup assets and ligbilivios. eguity. income. expenses and cosn flows rolefing 1o ransocherns

between the members of *he Group gre elminated on consotdation,

Non-cordroling interests in sutsidiones are identified separalely from the Group's eqguily therein. Thowe
interests of non-contraling thareholders that e present ownership ivteres!s are inifially rmeasured el the
rion-contraling inleresty propodtionate share of the ot value of tng acguiree's identiicble nel el
Subsequent to acquisition, the camying cmeunt of nor-controling intecests i ne amaunt of those interests

atindial recognifion plus the nen—contalling iterests” shaie of subsequent changes in equity.
Business Combinations

scquisticns of subsidiones are accounted tor wsing the acquisition metnod. The consideration tronsterred in
a pusinass comonclicn is meosured at fa'r value. Accutiton-related costs ore recognises in protfit or [oss os

incured,

Goodwil i measared as the excess of bhe sum ¢f the corsideraton ransferea, the amount of arv non-
co-troling irterest in the cogulres. ond fe feir vaue of the acoure’s previcus'y neld equify inferest in the
ncqure (it ony, over the net of tre acgustion.cate omaou-ts of the idenfificgnie ausets acquren and the

I'abrites gssumed.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Contingen! comsideration is megsured at its acquisiion-date fair value and included as port of tne
cornsideralion ransfered in o busingss combinalion. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration
tnat qualify a3 measurement perion adiustments are adjusted retrospectively. with coresponding
adiustrnents ogains goodwil, Mecsurement period adjusiments are adjusiments that orise from additione!
information oblained during o maximurm pesdod which cennot exceed one yedr om the acquisition dote
aboul focls ona crocumstonces tha! exised at the coouisition date, wWhere cnanges occur o conlingent
corsider clion that is classfied as an asset o liohility, that do net qaalify as measurement period adjiustmeants,
e conlingent consiceration i remeasured @ subseauent reporting dates with the corrasponding gain or
loss being recoamised in profit or loss, To the extent that the terms of contingent consideration arangemenls
include service conditions, consideration is reated as a cost of employment and s recognised over the

penod o which the service conditions relote,

The Group reports provisional smounts until the mecsurement period is completed.
Investments

investments in subsidiaries are valued ot cost iess provision for impairment.
Associates and joint arangements

An associote is on entity over which the Group has signiticant influence and thot is neither g subsidiory nor
an inferest in o joint venture, Sigrificant influence s the power 1o partcipate in the ‘financial anc operating

policy decisons of the investee but is net contral or joint contro? over those policies.

Ajoint crrangement is an arangemant of which two of mare parlies have joind cortrol. Joint confrol s the
cortroctually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
refevant activities [Le. activities that significantly affect the refurms of the arangement) require the unanimous
corsent of the porties sharing conthel Joind onangements are classfied into lwo types - joinl operalions and

joirt ventures,

A joint operation is g joint arrongement wnereby the parties that hove join: control of the arangement li.e.
joirt operators) have rights to the ossets. and obligotions for the liohilities, relating 1o the artengement. A joint
venture is ¢ joint amongement whareby the paties that have jont conircl of the arrengermnent (e, joint
venturers) hove rights 1o the net assets of the armangement. The type of joirt arangement is assessed by
corsiderng ity rights anc obligations. by considering the structure ond legol form of the orangemert, the
corfroctug: terms agrecd 16 by the portics to the orrangement ond, when relevart, other facts and

circumstances,

Tie assets and Fabilities {ond related revenues and expenses) of jont cperaltions are tecogrised in praportion

ta the interesd in the anangsment,

Tne results and cssets and lioklites of ossociates ond jeint veriures are incorporgred in these finonciot

statements ysing the equity methad of occounting, Under the couity methed, aninvestment m on associale

is in tigly recogniscd in the conselidated Steiement of Finoncial Position at cost and odjusied thereaficr to

iccognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other cormprehiensive incamce of the cssocicic. When
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tne Group's share of lasses of on associote exceeds the Group's nterest in that asocicle [which includes
any long-term irferests thot, in substance. form part of ine Group's net investment in the oscciate), the
Group discortinues recognising its share of further losses. Aaditional lasses are recognised only to the extent

that the Groug has incuned legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
Goodwil

Goadwil is not crmortised bul s reviewea for impairmen! Gt legst annucily.

For the purpose of impairment testing. goodwil is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-penerating units
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combinction. Cash-generating units fo which goodwill has
meen alocoted ore tested for impaiment annuaily, or more frequertly when there is on ndication ihat the
unit moy be impcired. If the recoverabie amount of fhe cash-genercting unit is iess than its camying amount,
tne impairment loss is alocated first 1o reduce the catying amount of any googwill cllocated to the unit ond
tnen to the otner assets of the unit pro-rato on the bass of the camying amoun® of each asset in the unit. An

impairment ioss recagnised for goodwill is not reversed in g suscauent perod,
Impalrment of non-current assets

At each baorce shegl dote, the Group reviews the corrying amounts of it fangible and intongible gssets
to determine whether there is any indicatian thal those assets hove wifered animpairment (o35, Goodwilt iy

reviewd for impairment at least annogclly.

Yor the purpase of Impairment testing. goodwill is allocotes, at acquisition. 1o ~he ccsh genercting units

(CGUs) or group of units that are expected to benefit from that business combination.

A impaimmerd loss iy recognised if ine camying amount of the osset under corsideration exceeds s
recovergble gmount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value inuse,
In assessing woiue in yse. the estimated future cash flows cre discounted to therr present value using ©
discoun: rete thot refiects curen! market ossessrments of the time value of maney and the risks soecific to

e asset,

If the recoverabie amount of the cask-genersting unit is less than the camying omount of the unit. the
impairment ioss is clliocated first te reduce the carrying cmaount of any goodwill and then e the other assats
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carying amount cf eocn asset in the unit. An impairment loss

recagnised for goodwil is not reversed in © subseguent perod.
Investments in shows and co-production arangements

investients ™ snows ore stafed ot cost less amounts recoupes to date, and provisions for ony omounts

which tne directars do not neleve ore recoverable,

Procuciion crangemenls are reviewed on ¢ pradacton by proguchon besis ond reated based on ine

praciples aulines above as ei*ther g subsidiary, an associcle or onl venture o join' arengement.
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Property, plont and equipment

Froperty, plant and equipment are stated af cost less deprecigtion and accumwlated impairments,
Depreciation is provided at rates calculotea to write off the cost of fixed assets. less their estimoted residual

vaiue, on o straight-ine basls over their expected usetul lives cs follows:

Freehcld Luilcings 40 1o 50 years
Leasehold property Shorler of leasehold term and usetul lite: of 40 to 50 vears
Fixtures and fittings 4 - 10 years, or over the period to the end of the lease of the thealre

it this is shorler

No depreciation is cpplied ta the cost ot gssets in the course of construction. Freehole tand is not

depreciated.
Intangible assets

Intangible ocssets ¢li have finite lives and ore caries ot cost iess accumulaied amortisation ond
accunulated impairment losses. Amoertisction is recognised on a straighi-fne posis over their estimated

usefu: ives ond is recognised in the administrative expenses line item.

Tne amorisotion period for software s 4 years. The estimated tife of other intangitle assers is comidered on

an ossexl-by asset bass and is up to 10 years.
Inventory

inventory is valucg at the lower of cost and ned realisch g vaive offer moking due cliowance for obsolete

and slow moving iterms,
financial instruments

financial gsse!s and Fnonciallichilifies are recognised in the Consolidaled Statement of Financial Posificn
when fhe Group becomes a porty (o the contactual pravisions of "he inshrumes1 and are iritially measured
at fair varue. ransaction cotts thot e directiy atiributable 1o the aoguisition or issue of fingnciol ausets and
finoneial Fabilities, other than finoncial assets and finoncial liabiilies al far volue through profil o loss
["FYTPL"} are adoed o, or deducted from, the fair value cf the inanciot assets or finonoaliobiities on initial
recognition. Transaction costs direcity attibutatse (o the acguisifion of financial assels or firancial liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in prolt or Joss,
Cash and cosh eguivolents

Cash and cosh equivalents comprise cash bolances. coll deposts anod escrow-type oacounds, Bank
overdrofts that are repayats € on demand and form an indegral part ol the Group's cash managemen! are

inciuded as a component of cash ang cash ecquivalents for the purpose: of Ine Statermerd of coash fows,
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Tradle recewables and accrued income

Trade receivobles ona aocrued incame ore clossified as loans and receivabiles and ore meosured of
amortised cost using the effective inferast method, less any impairment. Since rade receivables and
accrued income are typically due within ane vear, and the eflect of any effective inleresd is immaterinl, this

eguales 10 nihal camying vaiue less any impairment,
Borowings

Loans and Borrowing: are inflially measured gt fair value, ne! of frarmsaction cosls. They are subsequertly
measured at amantised cost using the effectve inferest method, with interest expente recogmited on an
eflective vield basis, Tne effective intered rale s a metnod of calculaling the amortised cost of a financict
liabilily and of allocated interest expense over the relevani peiod. The efleciive inferes rale i the rate thal
exacily discounts eslimated [ture cash payments through the expected e of the financial liabiity. o,

where ogpproprote, o shorter period 1o the net corying omaunt on initisl recognition,
Trocde payables and occruals

Trade poyables and occruas are clossfied as loans and receivobies and are measured of amortised cost
using the effective interest method. $nce trace poyables ans accruak are fyvpically due within one year,

and the effective of any elfechve interest is immaterial, this equates to inial carying volue.
finoncial guarontees

Financial guaraniee contracts are azcounted for as insurance contracts.

Detlerred income

Amounts received by the Group for services performed in fulure are classified as deterred income cnd
Y P P

recognised in the Consolidaled Statemen] of Comprehensive Income when the senvice is performed.
Refirement benefits

Payments 1o celined contnoution retirement beneli' schemes are recegnisea as an expense when
employees have rendered service entiting them fo the coriibutions. Dfferences between conhibutions
payaple in the period and conhibulions actually pcid are shaown G either azcnsais o prepoyments ie

tne bolonce sheet.

Where there are definec benefit schemes, f ¢ resiremment teneft ouligotion arises, il s recognised ot fair
vaue net ol any scheme assels, in the Consolidated Sta‘ement of Firanciat Fosition, Finence cherges or
tne wnwinding of giscoumted scheme ooligations are recognised in the Consolidatec Stolement of
Comprehersive Income, with any actucrial differences arising being recogrised in Otnar Comprerensive

InCome,
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Revenue

Revenue is recognised at the fair volue of the consideration received or receivabile and represents
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts,

VAT and cther scles-relcled taxes. Revenue for the Group comprises severol elements, including:
Venye rental ana production related services

Charges to productions in respect of services provided [such as venue rental ong stafting, brochure

production and accouwtling services} are recognised net of saes taxes as those services ore provided.

Revenue from production-related services is recoanised ot the daote of performaence of the show, urlil

which time it is held on the Slatement of Financicl Position as Defered Income.
Promictional services

The Group az's as prometer for self progucen shows ond shows proguced by third porties, Revenue from
tnese services is recognised at fair volue of consideralion received. net of sales foxes. af the dote of

perdformonce al the show.
MOrketing services

Ravenue from the provision of markeling services b recognisec af the fair value of the consideration
received o receivable. The fair value of considerclion lakes into cocount frade discounts, sefllement
discounts and volume rebates. Moarkeling services revenue is recognised net of sales laxes cver the penod
fhat servicer are provides. or as recovercble costs are incurmed, in gccordance with the terms of the
cortactua agreement. When recordedc markeling services revenue exceeds the amounts invoiced o

client, the excess s classified as accrued income.
Ticket sales

Revenue from ficke! sales represents the revenue eamed from commissiors, credit card charges and

similar charges, This revenue s recognised ot the date the ticket is sald.

Revenue from ticket saies where the Group it achng as selling agent [whetner for its own theatres of for
other UK venwes| includes booking feas. commissions, ang similar additionalincome charged ot the point
of scte. These omounts are recognised net o° any soles taxes ot the fronsoction cdate. Such revenue is
recognised G5 o1 agent rother thon principal transaction, cng so excludes the foce vaue o the tickels
sold.

Reial sales

Rovenue from concession sclos to customers at the Grous's venues is recognised nct of soles taxes of the

point of sale,
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Ohher revenue

The Group provides various other services on an ad Poc basis, oll of which ore refated 1o its principat activity.
Related revenue 5 recagnised ot far value over the pericd that such servees are performed and

performance obligations are met,
Joint operations

in relaticn to co-produciion arangements, whare ¢ controlling or joint operatior interest ik held. revenue
includes the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no confroling interest is held tumover
represents net income trom procuctions. Where equity accounting s appled, the share of profit or loss is

disclosed in the “share of resuits of associaies and joint ventures” line,
Government grants

inceme from government grarts is recognised as deferred income and relecsed to the Consolidated
stotement of Comprehensive Income as the attached conditions ore sofisfied, Where the grant relates to
procurement of ar asset. the omount received is relected to the Consoldoted Stolement of

Comprebensive Income aver the usefu! lile of the asset cgainst associotes depreciction.

A moateia grad reloted 1o osels i presenled in the stalermern of finoncia pasition as a deduchon from

the carrving volue ol the realed assel, wilh ¢ conseqguent ieduchionin the annual charge for degreciation.
Finance Leases

Finance leoses are those where substardioly al of the rske and rewards of ownership are ossumed by the

Group.

Assets pela uynder finarce leases are recognised as assets of the Graug at tneir fair value or . if lower, at the
present valug of he minimum lease payments, eoch delernmines ot the inceplion of the lease, The

comesponding liabilty to the lessor is included in the Consolicoted cs g finance lease ebligatior.

Tre: fincnce element of the rental poyment is charged 1o the Consoliaated Stalement of Comprehensive
Income asinteres! poyatie ir orgder oreflect the imputed cos' of finance on the rel obligation: cuwistanding

in goch ponod.
IFRS 14 Leases

The: Group recogrises a ngni-al-use assel and aleawe fablity ot the lease commencement dole. The right-
of-use assel s initially measues at cost, whick comprises the inifial amount of the lease labiity cdjusted for

any fease payments mace ot o before the commencement date. plos any inifial direct costs incuned.

Tre right-of-usc osset is sutsccouent y ceprecioted using the strcigh--lne metred fiom the commencement
dote, The cstimoted usctul ives of the night-of Lse Qiso™s are aetermincs or the same Lasis os those of

property, plant ond cquipment,
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The lease liabilty is inihally measared af the present value of the legse payments that ore not paid of the
commencement date, discounted vsing the Group's incremental bormowing rate. The [abiity is subsequently

adjusted for any re measurement of the lease ablity resulting from reassessrments or lease modifications.

Trhe Group presents Aghi-of-use assefs in 'property, olant ond equipmen!’ and lease liabiiifies in ‘finance

leqses’ in the statement of financial position.
Short-term leases and legses of low-value assetfs

The Group has elected not 1o reccgnise righl-of-use assets and leqse ligbilities for short-term leases of 12
moi’hs or less ond leqses of low-value assels. The Group recognises the lease payments ossociated with

these leqses as on expense on a stroighidine basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

For the purpose of the consolidaled finonciol statements, the results and financiol pesition of each Grous
Company ore expressed in pounds sterling. which is the funclional curency of the Company, and the

presentabtonal currency for the consolidaied financial siotemerts.

Monetary assets ang liabilfties denominated in Toreign currencies are transloled into slering ot rotes
of exchange rvling ot the balance sheet date. Transactions in fore’'gn currencies are transiated inio sterling
af the rote rwling on the dole of the tramsaction. Such exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
Ioss. Foreign excharge gains of losses ondcans that are effectively investrment ingstruments, such as where o
porent Company makes a loon with ro repayment terms to o subsicicry holding Company gs port of

cquisiion consideration, are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Results of overseos subsdianes are transloted of avercge monthly rates. Assets and labiities of overseas
subsidiaries are fronslcted ot the rate ruling ot the talance sheet dote, Such exchange differences arising

are recognised in the translation reserve and the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Operating profit

Operoiing profit is stated alter the share of results of associates but before finance income and costs, other

gains ond lasses ond laxes.

Finance income

Finance income is recognised in profit o loss in the period in which they are eamed.

Finance cosfs

finonce costs are recognise s in profit or ioss in the pericd N wnich they are incumed.

Other gains and losses

Cther gains ard losses are «ecognised in profit or foss in the pedod in which they are incured,
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Pre-Production reloted cosis

Expenses incured prior 10 a production geing live and are directly oftributab’e fo the production of the
show are categorised Into either property plant cnd equipment ond depreciated over the assomed vseful
fife of the show, or “Other non-tangible assets’, which cre relecsed o the Profil and Loss over the show's
usetu! lite basec upen the ratio at the curent pericd’s revenues to the estimales total reverues (Total
Production Revenue) for eoch production. Where estimiates of total Production Revenue decrecses,
amartizotion of pre-production costs may be accelerared. Conversely, if esimactes of Totol Production

Ravenues were To increose then amortization of costs may be slowed.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax cunenty poyobic ard deterred tax.

Curtent and defered Yox are recognised in profit of Ioss, except when they relate to iterrs that are
recognised n othet comprehensive income or directy n equity, inwhich case the current and deferred 1ax
are also recognized in olher comprehensive income or diregtly in ecuity respectively, Where current tax ar
deferred tax orises from the it accounting tor a business combination, the tax effec is included in the

accountng tor the Dusiness combinartion,

Current tox is hased on ioxah.c profit for the period calculated wsing tax rates that have been enacled or

subsiantively encoles by Ine eng of the reporting peried,

Deferred tax is recognised on temporery ditterences betwaen the carryng omounts ot assets and liabilities
in the consolioaied ‘inancizl statements and the comesponding tax bases vsed in the computetion of
taxable profit. Deterred tox labilities are generally recognised for all toxoble temparary differences.
Defered tox osse’s are gererally recognised tor oll ceductible temporary ditferences to the extent tnhat it is
probable thot toxable profits will be ovaillohle against which those deductinle temporary citterences can

be ulilised.

Such geferred tax ossets and iickilies ore not recognised if the tempaorary differerce arises from the initia,
recogrition of geodwil. from the initicl recognition (other than in a business comtxnahon) of assets ond
lighilities in a fransechor that cifects neither the taxcble profit nor the accounting profit or investments i
subsidicries and gssociates, andg interests in joint ventures, where the Group is abee to control the reverso of
tie tempo ary gifference and it is probeble tha’ the temporory difference will not revernse in the foreseeatle
futwre, The amoun! of gefered tox pravided s basea on the expecied monnet of realischion or setflement
of the conying amount of assets ang liabilities, ueng tax retes enacted or subsianlively enacied of he
financial peqiod end dale, A defleres tax assel is recognised only 1o Ine extent Ihol il is probable thar future

teeanle profis wil be available agans: which the asset can be uliliseca,
Provisions

Provisions are recognisea woen the Group has o preseni oolaation [lega o corstruciive) 0s aresult of o
nost event, 1y probabie thal the Group wil oe required 1o settle thet obligation ang o reliabie estmate

can be made of lhe amourd o he ohigation,
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sowces of estimation uncertainty

in the application ot the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 1. the Directors are
requirec 1o moke judgements, estimates ond assumplions chxout the carrying amounts of assefs and

liabilities tnat are not readily opparent from other sources.

Tre estimotes ond assooated assumotions cre based on historical experence and other factors that ae

considerad to be relevant. Actual results may offfer from these estimates.

The estimates ond underlying assumphions are reviewed on an ongeing bosis. Revisions to cccounting
estimgtes are recognised in the penod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only thot period,

or in the period of the revision ond future pericds it the revision affects both curert and future periods.
Judgernents
Golng concern basis

i order to Qssess whether it is apprepricte for the Group to be reported as 0 going concern, the Directors
apply jwdoement, having undertaken appropriate enguines and havirg considered the business activilies
and the Group's princinal fsks and uncertainties to therefore conclude hal the gcoounts be prepared on

a gaing concem bass. Refer to puge 26 for our delailed assessment.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Canying value of non-current assets

Impairment

The Group assesses the carmpng va ues of property, piant and equipment, ond intangible assets annually.
Recoverability s deperdent vpon assumptions and estimates regeording maorket conditions, future cask
flows and discount rates, known as at the 28 tarch 2020, A material change in assumpfions may significantly

impact the potential impairment of these assets.

-

A recsorably possibie change in the dark period 10 6 menths creates an impairment of £5.7 million ir
marketing services cosh generating unit and reduces headroomin olther CGUs to 24%, 118%. 23%.anz 164%,

for UK, US, BB, Mehr ol the carying value respectively. Furiner detall can be found in note 12,
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Pravisions

Refunds and ficketing provision - provision for potertia costs related to refunds and ticketing as ¢ result of
al venues being closed was basec on the fimited amcunt of data and the short window between the
venyes gaing dark ond the year end. A regsonable change in assumptions may significantly impact the

level of provisions backed, which was bases on inrformation available as of 28 tarch 2020,
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3. Revenue

The Graup’s revenue from external customers by classification is detailed beow:

venue Renfal ond Proauction Reiated Services
Promotional & Markcting Services

Ticket and Retail Sales

Other

Total revenue

52 week period 52 week period
ended 28 March ended 30 March

2020 2019

£'000 £000
230,048 224,497
115.478 114.184
119,547 95,124
11,654 9,375

C 478747 443,180

ne Group's revenue from externa custorners by gecgraphical locotion is detaled below:

52 week period 52 weck perod
ended 28 March ended 30 March

2020 209

£'000 £000
United Kingdom 213,847 207 985
Rest of Europe 123,473 124 326
Nartk America 129 441 100,252
Asic 9,985 1G.617
Total revenue 474,747 243,185
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4. Net Loss for the Period

Net loss tor the perdod has been arived at after chargng/ {crediting):

Depreciation of property, plont and eguipment 13
Depreciation charge for right-of-use ossets - Buifngs 13
Amortisolion of infangitle fixed ossets 12
Impairment of property, plont ana cquipment 13
irmpairment of intangibie ossefs 12

Irmpairment of long ferm detotor
Operaling leaie charges

Staff couis

finance incomc

¥ingnce costs

Interest expernse on IFRS 16 lease liabilifies
Othet gains and losses

[+ v R e 8

52 week 52 week perod

period ended
28 March
2020

£000
21.43%
8.759
1974
7.154
7.776
8,947
2181
137.810
{1.344)
30,926
6.547

ended 30
Morch 2019

000
16,852

2872

10,372
121.184
{1.314)
40,428

17,249

in the pricr yeor. other gains ond losses relate primarily 1o the unwing of the US tax cred: structure, which
was entered into in ordar to rebuiic the Soerger Thearre, ‘ollowing its destrucfior durng the passcge of
Hurricane katrina in New Crieans. The unwing resuliec in ¢ net non-cach one-otf 10ss ¢f £17.2 millorn, which
comprised of ¢ one-off loss of £20.6 milkon as the vaiue cf the property (£31.0 milion) was higher than *he
notes coyable balence of {£10.4 milion, which was waived by the City ot New Oreans upon transter of tho

praperty. This ioss was offset by o netl gain of £3.4 mithion from the initial fransfer-in of the assets following the

initicl frigger of the unwing by the involved thifd parties.
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5. Auditor's remuneration

Tre anatysis of the cuditor's remuneration is as tollows:

52 week perod 52 week period
ended 28 ended 30
March 2020 March 2019

£'000 L0000
Fees poyable to the Company's auditor and thelr ossociates for the audit of:

e consatidated and parent financiol statements 418 308
The subsidiary financial stotements 45 59
Total audit fees 483 367
Taxgtior compeliance services 1 63
Taxotior advisory services 10 25
Total non-audl fees a 88
Total 484 455
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6. Stoff costs

The average monthly number of employees [including executive directors) wos:

52 week period 52 week period
ended 28 March ended 30 March

2020 z019
Executive directors 5 S
Venuoe stoff 4,349 4041
Other 1,524 1,368
Total monthly overage number of employees 5,880 5414
Their aggreqate remunerstion comprized: £'000 2000
Wages and salaries 125,644 110,438
Social security costs 9.703 2,039
Cther pension costs 2,441 L7507
Total aggregate remuneration 137,810 121,184
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6. Stolf costs {continved)

Remuneralion of direciors and key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors and key monagemen?! personnel of the Group is set cu* below:

52 week period 52 week petiod
ended 28 March ended 30 Morch

2020 20719
£'000 £00C
Remuneration of directors:
Salaries, fees, bonuses, and benefits in kind 1,501 1,576
Maney purchase pension confributions 20 20
Total remuneration of directors 1.52) 1.590
Femuneration of directors and key manggemen? personnel;
Remunerction 3,687 3,664
Social securily canfributions 513 540
Pension 60 55
Tatal remuneration of key management personnel 4,260 4,259

Key management personnel are those who hove significant infivence over the operational rurning of the
business. Dwing the penod. refirement benefits were accruing te 2 [201%: 2} directort in respect of

defired cantribution schemas.

Tne highest paid director received remuncration of £935, 000 [20019: £31.072.500). The valuc of the
Compeny's confricutions poid o g defined contribution scheme in respect of thet individua! amounted

to £10.005 (2019 £10.000}.

During the period, directors and key management personnel received fotol compensation for loss of office

totaling £nil (2019 £nil), on which sociol secunity of £nil {2019 £nil] was paid by the Group.
Pensions

Tre Group opercies defined confribution pension schemes. The assets of the scheme gre held separately
from those of the Groug in an independently administered furd. The penson cost charge represerts
contributions payable by the Group 1o the fund and amounted 1o £2.441000 (2009 £1.207.000).
Confricutions totaling £360.000 {2019 £84.000) were payatide to the fung of the bawonce sheet date,

Employee benefii frust

The Group has no direc employves snare icheme o thare-based payment orangement. However, certain
employees ol the Group have agequited an inderest in the equily of the holdng Compary via an employee

banefit hust in beth the curent and prior periacs.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

7. Fnance income

52 week 52 week penoc

period ended ended 30

28 March 2020 tAareh 2019

£'000 £'000

Interest income 1,324 1.294

Unwinaing of aisceunt on long term receivcbiles ond 20 20
payables

Finunce income 1,344 1.314

8. Finance costs

52 week 527 week peried
period ended endec 30 Morch

28 March 209

2020
£000 £:000
interest ar loans from parent undertakings 1,841 1,799
Interes: or ban< overdrafts and toans 20,348 13,747
interey on ehiligalion: under finance leases 11,504 4919
Aamctisalion of inancing fees 3,780 1.502
Fao'r value losses on financial instruments . 18.661
Finance costs 37.473 40,628

Infercornpany realted lpans incured interest charges of Libor plus 5.0% margin.
faany Y




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

9. Taxation

Angtysis of fax {credit] / charge in the perog

52 week 52 week perod

petiod ended ended 30
28 March Morch 2019
2020
Current tax £'000 £000
Tax charge on loss for tne period 431 4065
Price year fax adjustmend {4.570)
Foreign tax n the poried 947 -
Total current tax (3.172) 4065
Deferred tax 22
Defered tax credit current year (8.333) {583)
Cnange in tox rate 2.760 -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods F&3 (2is)
Total deferred tax {4.810) {(799]
Tax on loss (7.982) 3.26¢

Corporation toxis colcutated at 19% (2019: 19%) of the estimoted taxable profii for the period. Toxation for

other jurisdictions is colculated ot the rares prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

There is Ni income lax impact (2019 Ni) Tor items within ather comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

?. Taxation {conlinued)

The charge for the petiod con be reconciled to e Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incame

as follows:

52 week perlod 52 week period
ended 28 e-ded 30 Maich
March 2020 219
£'000 2000
Lo belore fax {33.,907) {28,238]

Loss multiplied by siondard rote of corporation tax in the UK cf
197 (2015 19%,] {6.442) {5.365)

Effect: of;

Expenses no! deductitle fon fax purposes 3.564 10,601
Agjustmenis o tax charge in respect of pricr perods [3.807) {216)
Eftect of different rate tor deterred fox 2760 (84
Eftect of overseas tax rotes {3,402} 259
Theatre tax credit 1935} [1.345)
Qther receonciing gifferences 780 16
Tax (credif) /charge for the period (7.982) 3266

The closng UK deferred tax liobility as of 28 Morch 2020 nas been calculoted at 19%, as the rote reduction
recagnisediast year has been reversea, reflecting the tax rate at which the defered tox iability is expacted

ta become poyable.

Delermed tax labiites have not beer recognised in respect of retaines eamings of overseas subsidiares.
Relained earnings of overseas subsiciories are expected to be reinvested indefinitely or remitec 1o the UK
free from further faxation. Defered fox asses on caried forward unulilised losses in Australia of £2.097,000

[201%: £2.270.000] hove not been recognised.

There are carfied forward urutilise s fax 1osses in the UK of £351.065 {2019; £351.000) resulting in ¢ defered

tax asset which has net neen recognised, None of tnese iosses nave ar expiry cate,

Tre tax debtor in the UK k £5.037.000 ord tne creditor for Germany is £1,84%,000. There is o defered tox
liabiiity of £28,£9%.000 ond o getered tax asset of £11,548.000.




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

14. Investments

The directly ond indirectly held subsidiaries are listed in note 31,

Group As at 52 week Az ot 52 week
period ended period ended
28 March 2020 30 tdarch 2019
£'000 £'000

Cost and Net book vaive
Listed investments 1 1
dnlisted invesiments 4,355 4128
Invesimentis 4,354 4,129
Compony As ot 52 week  As of 5Z week
pericd ended pensad ended
28 March 2020 30 nMarch 2019
£'000 £000

Cost and Net bocek value
Subsidiary invesiments 262,575 262,575
Investments 242,575 282,575

Tne Group's uniisted investrnents relade 1o s investmend in Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC, o

company incorporaled in the United States of America of which the Group owrs 1.08%,

64
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI|AL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

11. Interests in ossociates and joint ventures — Group

As ot 52 week As ot 52 week
period ended period ended
28 Mareh 2020 30 varch 2019

£'000 £'000
Interess in joint ventures 515 394
Interests in gssociates 1,004 1,279
Interests in ossociates and joint ventures 1.51% 1,673

Joint Ventures

The Group hos intereste in several ingividualy immaternal Joint Ventures which take the form of both
productions and businesses. Each investmen! s shuciured o5 ¢ :eparate vehicle and the Group hos G
residuct irleresl in the net assets of the investment, Accordirgly. the Groupr has classified its inleresds as joint
veniures. For some of the productions, the Groap is entiisd to less than 50% of e praduction eqnings

however ihe production agreemer ligguires unanimaus corsent in decison making resulling in joint conteol,

ihc following table analyses, in aggregate. the carryving cmount and share of to'al comprehensve INCome

of these Joint Yeniyres,

Tre tollowing companies hove a year-end dote different to the Group's accounting fnarcinl year end of

28 March 2020;
HP? Wesl End: 31 Oclower 2020
JB UK Tour 11t 31 December 2020
Trean Times SF LP: 31 Decembier 2020
Train Times Broadway LP: 31 December 2520

This is o5 a retult of the entities not faling under IEHL and therefore structure is pot it place in line with

sharehoelaer's expecictions.

for the purposes of applving the equily methad of cocounting, the inancial datements of HE wes End (for
ther year ended 31 Qclober 2019), ang JB UK Tour Il Train Trme SF LP. Tresin Timess Broagway (P {for he yeor

erded 31 December 201%) hove been used.

Tre joirt ven*ures are nof restricted in thesr obiity to trarsfer ‘unds o *he Group in the form of cast dividends,

ar torepay 1ogns of advances by the entivy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

11. Interests in associates and joint ventures — Group {continued)

As at 52 week
period ended
28 March 2020

As ol 52 week
penod ended
30 March 2019

£'000 £'000

Canying amount of interests in joint Ventures 515 394

Share of total comprehensive income (702) (371)
Associales

As af 52 week As ot 52 week

period ended period ended

28 March 2020 30 March 2019

Carnrying amount of interests in Associates

£'000
1,004

£000
e

Share of total comprehensive income

66



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

12. Intangible assets - Group

Total
Assets under Other - Intangible
Software construction Intangibles Assets Goodwill Totat
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Cost
At 31 March 2018 7934 - 4,560 14,491 294903 309.394
Additians %.352 9.352 9,352
Recognised on acquisiion of ¢
subsidarny
- pehit Entettcinment GrmioH 33 - £38 38,652 39,230
-ACESLLLC - - 34,947 34,947
- Theatre Mancgement Ho dings
Limited . - - 5,285 5,255
Exchange differences [202) - [62) (964) 157 (807)
At 30 Morch 2019 14,919 . 6,498 23,417 375,954  3%9.37)
Aaditions 2,929 3.292 7.447 13,668 13,648
Tromsfers 3,222 [3.222) - .
Exchange differences 2 - 4472 464 4,565 5,029
Al 28 March 2020 23.073 70 14,407 37.550 380,519 418.049
Accumuloted amodtisction and Impairment
At 31 March 2018 6119 - 24676 B.795 7.629 14,424
Charge for the 53 weck period 2.147 - 725 2,872 - 2,872
Exchange differences {1] 1194) {195) [150] {345)
At 30 March 2019 8,245 - 3.207 11.472 7.47¢9 18,95}
Charge tor the 52 week period 1.52] - 433 1.974 - 1.974
Imgairment - - 776 7.776 7774
Exchange differences - . 3t 310
At 28 March 2020 2.804 . 11.414 21,222 7.78% 27.01
Carrying amount .
At 28 March 2020 13,267 70 2,991 16,328 372,730 389,058
Al 30 March 2019 8.654 - 3.271 11,945 368.475 380,420

Tre cmount of expenditures recognised in the carry ng omount of assets under construction is £3.3 mullion
¥ o

(2019: £N1).

Cinerintangibie assets relote 1o show rights costs ond pre-prodaction refoted o

6/

~
{

3575,



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

12. Intangible assets - Group (continved)

Goodwil acguired in a business combination is alocated. of acquisition. to the cash generating units
(CGUs) or group of units that are expected 1o benefit from thal business comaination. The camying amount

of goodwill had been olivcated 1o the following Groups of CGUs:

At 28 March

2020

£'000

United Kingzom 254,446
UsSA 62.033
hiainiond Europe 42,673
AKA 13,578
Totol goodwill 72,730

The Group tests goodwil, intangible assets and af Preperty, plant and cgquicment annucly for impairment,
or more frequently i¥ there are indicelions that goodwill might be impaired. The recovercbie amounts of the

CGUs and the group of units are determined from value in use caiculations.

Tre impoiment reviews for United Kingdom, USA, Maginland Europe and AKA oo not indicate ony

imgairment agoinst goodwill, however it did indicote mpairment charges as tollows:
Other Intangibles (Mainiand Ewrope) - £7.8 mitlion
Property Plant & Equipment {iefer fo note 13):
¢ Mainiang Europe - £5.1 milicn

United Kingdom- £1.8m
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

12. intangible assets — Group (continuved)

The key assumptions and resulting attibutes of the impairment review are as follows:

Mainland  Mainland

Unlted Europe: Europe: Marketing
£Ms Kingdom UsSA BB Mehr! Services
Goocwil 254.4 42,0 30 39.4 13.6
PPE [ Other Intangibiles 2743 122.3 4.6 478 13.2
Total assets 528.7 184.3 7.6 87.4 248
WACC assumption 10.0% 10.5% 10.8% 16.0% %.4%
GDP Growth 0.0% 21% 0.0% Q0% 0.0%
inflator 2.0% 2.7% 1.7% 1.7% 20%

The values for the key assumptions were amived al by toking into consideration historical information and
comparisan 1o exiernol sources where appropriate, such as market rates for discount faciors. GDF growth
rates arc Usec as the termingl valuc growth rote in coleulatng the net present values of the respoctive

CGus. while the infiation rates are applied as the base growth factor for years 2 to 4.

Budgeled cosh flows - Ine coiculation of volue in Lse nos Deen based on the cosh flows farecast in the 2020
tree-yeal p'an growth cssumptions, consistent with a fixed growth rate ‘or the remaining two years tor the
subsequent yeass until 2024, Growthraies beyond this are in ine with forecosts of tne Infernational Monelary

funo re evart to eoch geographical lccation.
Tre: Granadh usedd it yeear 1is based or the following key assumplion:, acress all venues and geographies:

- 3maonir ‘derk’ period for alt venues and productions, with this gssumption deemed to be arclatively
prudent assumption os at the time of the review, 28 morch 2020, basec on management's view,
iNCUstry nesws and government initizlives, which were all gegred towards a three monith lock- cown
perod af thal point in time,

3 months ramg up pack io normal operating funclion {60% revenue i month 1. 65% in mosth 2 and

70% in montt 3 post reopening)

SensHivily: A reosonably possib'e change in the dark perod 10 & months cregies on imoairment £5.7 milion
in the marketing services cash generaing urit ond reduces headroom in ofher CGUs to 24%. 118%. 23%,
and 164%, for UK. US. BB, Mehr of the camying va ue respectively, Ne other reasonatsle sensitivities will lead

to materigi differences.,

The Company bas no Intangible assets 12019 £nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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13. Froperty. plant and equipment - Group

Shor-ferm
Freehald  Rlght of Use Long-erm leasehald Alsets undit Fixhare s
property Asse! leasehold property property  construclon and Rfings Towi
£'000 £000 £'006 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Grovp
Cost
AT Morch @008 i5).2e5 129 182 & Ba7 [ Y 53 10 349,464
Accitrong Z.540 FaGe 234 jadola] e 23,432
Acqut ton of subsid oy TN 13,564 4 Ph 30,520
Exctiirge shifefencs: e 4,494 EX 492 5.084
EARCV R gols R 162 604 T40 482 e 387 702 74137 408.500
Aoy [V eI 4 SPT 8o RArS 43,739
BN f REY H A0 87,590
DJispasals -
Trareiar: (I0257) CRRT -
Twormaege Aty 9Cz J.5%4 73 {37C] (53) V210 4,444
Al 28 March 2020 172729 91.184 153497 22,589 5945  100.32¢ 544,273
Accumuigied depreciokon and impalirment
A3 MTon DD 2 T2541 21 588 3.701 20 024 59.254
Chexgae for T 33 woene e 0d 2898 447% r £ 533 14 852
A AMeenil e [y L7 T 757 LX)
P RCWREE: Salii it Ve ES PN &3 wd 77037
Charge Tar 1he 5Z week e o 1275 G675 5733 598 V3¢ 30198
Impairment - F 154 7.154
Exchange differences 6HA 95 7%
A 26 Morch 2020 20,285 B.759 2477 445 48,922 115348
Neibook valug
At 26 March 2020 152,464 82425 121 12 17,544 5945 51,407 430.%05
Af 30 Morch 2019 14,470 174 vag 180 50 45021 331,443

The amount of expenditures recognised in the carry'ng amount of assets under corshuction is £8.6 million

(2019: £0.9 million}.

The Company has ne praperty, plant ond egquipment {2009 £2n1).



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

14, Inventories ~ Group

As ot 52 As at 57 week
week period penod enced
ended 28 30 Morch 2019

March 2020
£'000 £000
Finished goods at cost 1,395 1.2672
Inventory provision {351)
Finished goods and goods for resale 1.044 1,262

The Company has ng inventory {2619 £ril].

15. Investments In shows — Group

As at 52 week As ct 52 week
period ended  perod ended
28 March 2020 30 pMarch 2019

£'000 £030
Investments in shows 3,794 5511

Investmert i~ shows refiect the Group's investment in productons in which it does not have a conreling

interest.

Tne Company bas ne investrments in shows {2019 £nil),
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16. Yrade and other receivables - Group

As ot 82 week  As Q! 52 week
period ended period ended
28 March 30 Moarch 2017

2020

£000 £000
Notes recetvable 10.966 11,787
Long-tetmreceivable [or developer fee - 5529
Other non-cument receivables 12,352 11,373
Amounts recelvable ofter more than 12 months 23.318 28,687

The notes receivoble balonce comprises omounts receivable from counierpanies in relation o “he

financing structure of the redevelopment of Hudson Theatre vio a wel-used arangement crealed by the

JS government o encowrage linancial institutions fo invest inlc redevelopment of nistoric buldings. Interest

it receivable ot rofes between 0.48% ond 0.5%. These will be recoverable rom the counterparties either

over the [fe of the inslhumeni or by transfer of lzasehold inferests. The iong-term receivable relales 1o ¢

balance scquired as pert of the ACE acauiition ond is a fee {or theatlre development tervices provided

which will he paid over a number of years.

As af 52 week As ot 52 week
period ended period ended
28 March 2020 30 March 2019

£'000 £000
Trace receivabies 2%,385 36173
Prepayments and accrues income 11,419 15,744
Corporotion tax receivoble 5,037
Oﬁ‘wer receivobles 16,513 5.641
‘Amounts receivable within 12 months 42554 57,560

The Company had no trade and otner receivables (2019 L),

All impoired tode receivables have been providad o the extent they cie beleved nel o be recoverabie.

The: maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the {or volue of ecch class of receivable. The

Group does not hold any cellaterat as secuity. Assets which are nelther past due nor impaited are

considered fully recoverable.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

16. Trade and other receivables - Group (continved)

Anatysis of yrade receivabie ageing

Credit risk menogemend

Credit risk refers to the risk that o counterparty wil default on its contractuct obligotions resulting in finarcicl
ioss to the Group. As of 28 march 2020, some of the Group's trade receivobies were due anc/or past due
but rot impaired. These selate 1o a numser of independent customers with no material concentration within
any one customer anc Ne cus'emers who ore of perticularly high risk of defoutt. The ageing analysis of thase

trade receivables is as tollows:

As at 52 week  As ot 52 week
period ended peried ended
28 March 2020 30 narch 2019

£'000 £000
Upy to 3 monthy 19,328 23.448
3t & monits 2,929 7.78)
Tver & montng 10,316 57\¢
Total 32,583 31,967

As of 28 pMarch 2020, the Group ako hed past sue frade receivables which hod Been pravided fo!

As at 52 week As of 57 week
period ended perod ended
28 March 2020 30 pMarch 2819

£'000 £'000

1o 3 months 2,078 430
3tc 6 mantrs 217 81
Over 6 morths 203 37
Total ' o T e 548

Under IFRS %, the Group is required to ulilise objective evidence 2 well 0 consider lorward locking
informaton, such as tne econormic conditions in the countries where the Gloup operates, and the
probabilly of detault wher calculating expecied credit loses, The moturity of finandial assets s Ihergfore
usert as an incicator as to the prebability of defeult. The adoption of IFRS % 0 the prior vear did not result ir:
a matenal change in the loss alowarce and impairments recognised under IFRS 9 compied "o thot bele

uncer $AS 39,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

17. Cosh and cash equivalents - Group

As at 52 week As of 52 week
period ended period ended
28 March 2020 30 March 2019

£'000 £'000
Cash ond cash eguivaients helg in own accounts 130,214 1,606
Cash ond cash ecuivalents held in escrow 8,84% 7.350
Cashond cashequivatents 139085 98956

The Company bas no cash and cash equivalents (2019 Znil).

18. Trade and other payables - Group

As ot 52 week A5 al 52 week
period ended pericd ended
28 March 30 Morch 2009

2020

£'000 £'000
Trage payables 37,155 34,285
Defered income 142,354 138,959
Accruals 58,474 65,104
Cther taxation ond social sccurity 495 7879
Tax Creditor 2104 6118
Cther payables 15014 10.707
Government gronts received and not yhlised 796 1,259
Trade and other payables due within 12 months 260,814 244,308

The Company has ar intercompany payable aof £10.% milion {(2019: £10.9 milion) which is repayabe on

demznd, ne interest is chargea,
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19, Bomowings - Group

As at 52 week  As al 52 week
period ended period enced
28 March 30 march 2019

2020

£'000 £000
Bank loans - senior debt 358,000 358,053
Bank loars - revelving credit facility 49,370 -
Total senior debt 427 370 358,053
Fair value odjustment / unamortised fincncing fees 14,261 16,480
Bank icans - other 84 40% 82,569
Bomrowings 524,040 451,102
Amount due for setlernent within 17 months 6$9.370
Armncunt due for setilement after 12 montns 454,470 451,102
Bomowings 524,040 £51,102

Tne biznk locons ~ serior debt, are secured by a chorge over the gssets of Intemctong: Entertainment
finonce Umited, g subsigiary ¢f the Company ang the mcjarity of its subsaiary undertakings, Thesc inans
poar interest ot a rate wivch fiuctuctes in fne w th LBOR with o margin ranging between 4.25% and 475%

and are governes by a senior fnonce coreement with requisite coverants,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

19. Borrowings — Group {confinued)

Tre Group dlso has other debt items, which are secured agaimnst the cssets of its shareholder, of £84.4
millior [201%: £82.4 million}. Interest is non-cash paying and accyes at g totalrate of LIBOR plus 1.5%. That

debt it securer over tne assets of the Group's shereholder, and the facilty expires in 2023,

As at 52 week  As gf 52 week
period ended period ended
28 Morch 30 March 20019

2020

£'000 £'000
8ank loans - senior dott 427.370 358,053
8onk loars - other 84,409 B2.5¢%
Fair value odjustment 18.481 18,&41
unamertised financing fees (4.400) (B.181}
Net bank loans 524,040 451,102

e Company does not hove ary Bomowings {2019 £nill,
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NOTES YO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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20. Obligations undet finance leases - Group

As al 82 As at 52 week
week period penod ended 30
ended 28 tAarch 2019
March 2020
£'000 £000
Amount due within 12 months
Fingnce leases 4,270 4,14%
IFRS 16 Leoses 15,204
Cbligations under lease ligbllities 19.474 4,149
As at 52 As ot 52 week
week petiod period ended 30
ended 28 taarch 2019
March 2020
£'000 2000
Amount due after 12 months
finonce leases 86,629 §5.522
IFRS 14 Leoses 71.077
Obligations under lease liabllities 157.706 B5.522

Flnonce Leases - Group

Minimum lease poyments

Present valve of
minimum lease
payments

28 March 30 March 28 March 30 March

2020 201¢ 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Within one year 4284 4,244 4,27G 4,189
In the: second to fiftth years inclusive 17,578 17,403 14,985 14,987
After five years 405,639 409,578 73,474 72,733
477.503 431,275 92,731 ¢1.889

Less: future tingnce charges [334,439) [339.337)

93,084 91,868 92,731 ¢1.88¢
unamortised tinance costs [2165) [2.197) {2.165] [2.198)
Present value of iease obligotions 90,899 89,49 90,564 89,491
Amount duc withn 12 months 4.270 4,149
Amoynt due alfter 12 months B6.629 85,522
o0.899 E9.6%1

Tre Group lkecses certain properlies unger finance lease arangenents, The average lease term is 75 years,

Tre Group does not have the optior (o purchaose the propertes for o nomingt value a! the end of tre lease

terms, cnd the Groop’s obdgotions urdes e fingnoe leoses are secured over the properlies being eased,

interest rates uncerlving ol oblgoticns unoer ‘inance teases are mplicit rates ranging trom 5.3% to 5.8%

(2019: 5.3% to 5.8%).



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

20. Obligations under finance leoses - Group (continued)

IFRS 16 lease llabliities - Group

As at 52 week A5 ot 57 week
period ended pencd ended
28 March 2020 30 rAgrch 2019

£'000 4000
Current 15,204
Non-¢urrent 71,077
IERS 14 lease Hablilty 84,281

The weighted average incremental borowing rate applied 1o meosure leoase labilities is 7.92%.

As at 52 week
period ended 28

March 2020

Maturity analysls £000
Mo later than | year 15,204
Loter thar 1 year and not ioter then 5 vears 12,038
Loter thar 5 vears 55,039
86,281

The Group does not face ¢ dgnificent liquicity risk with regard 1o ifs lease liabilities. Lease labiites are
montored within the Group's trecsary lunclion, Overall the variable paymeants constitute up to 6% of re
Group's entire lease payments. The group expects this ratio to remain constant in future yeors. The variable

payments depenc on fickel sales and consequenily or the overcll economic development over the next

tew years. The tolal cash outflow for leases cmourt to £13.6m (2017: £10.01m).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

21, Provisions - Group

Acquisition- Dilapidations Refunds and Other Total

related Ticketing

provisions Frovision
Group £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2018 17,842 788 1160 19.790
Additicns - - - - -
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiary 11,879 - 11.87%
Relecse {18,380) (155) [448]) [18983)
At 30 March 2019 11,341 433 - 712 12,688
Additions - 2611 11,241 - 13,852
Release {1.055) - - 11.055)
At 28 March 2020 10,286 3.244 11,241 712 25483

Acquisifionrelated provisions relate to earn out cgreemenis 0 respect of the acauisitions of Menr! Group.

The considerction is payoble dependend on success factor ariterino over the next three years.

Dilaprdahons reiate o the oxpected love!l of diapidotons mainty reictec 1o central offices, Tne

adequacy of the provisons is porcdcally reviewed to ensure thar they will moc- the fina oblgaticns,

Ticketing & Refunds provisions relate to expecied covls 1o Be Borme by the business specifically in relotion

to canceled programmes and refund ol hickets.

Other provisions prmoriy relaie to the possbitity thot shows may be cancelied or loss-making. when tne

Group is onee agan sperational wit all venues open. These provisions are calculated or the basis of

management’s estimecies of the voiume of such events tnat are expected ond the potental value of their

imoact on the Group's profit or ioss.

The Compony hds NG provisiors {2019; £nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

22, Defered tax - Group

Revoluation Acceleroted Acquisiion Tax losses Other timing Total
of property tax intangibles differences
depreciation

£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 31 Morch 2018 25.13% {594) 708 (832) (3.283) 21,133

Recognised on acquisition of - ) 1.403 - - 1,408
subsiciiary

Charge / (Credit] to profit or loss (687] (65) {112) [1.610) 1.670 [799)

At 30 March 2019 24,457 {454) 2,199 {2,442) (1.618) 21,942

Charge / {Credit) to profit or loss 2116 52 {73) (912} {5,9%93) {4.810)

At 28 March 2020 26,573 {402) 2,126 {3.354) (7.611) 17,132

28 March 30 March

2020 09

£'000 £030

Deforred tox siabitties 28,699 26,656

Dclerred tox assets (11,567) (4713

Net deferred tax liability 17,132 21,943

Defered tox assets are expected 1o be reclised by profits generated in future years in each relevant

territory,

Tne Company has no deferrcd tax (2009 £nil).
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23. Share copfitat - Group and Compony

As at 52 week  As ot 52 week
period ended pericd ended
28 March 2020 30 tAorch 2019

£'000 £000
Autharsed, lssued ond fully poid:
262,147 Ordinary shares of £1 eoch 282 262

Ko share issue hos token place during the period ended 28 March 2020,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

24 Notes to the cash flow statement

Net cash generated by operafing aclivities

For the 52 week Far the 52

period ended  week period

28 March 2020 ended 30

Maren 201%

£'000 £'000

Cperaiing profit 2222 28,325
Impairment ot ossets 14,930

Amoertisotion of intangible fixed assets 1.974 2877

Depreciction of property, plant ond eguipment 21,439 16,852

Deopreciction charge for right-of-use assets - Bulldings 8.75% -

Snore of resulls of gwociates and joint veniures {702) (371)

Mavemesnt ir non-cash payabiles - [10.629)

Increcse/[Decrense| in provisions 9,950 14.905)

Operating cash flows belore mavements inworking capita: 58.581 30043

Increose n inventores {125) (104}

Decreasse in recaivables 1815 9574

increose in Payobles 8,966 8,944

Cash generatea by operating cotivities 69.237 48978

Corporote fax puid {7.002) 13.2%3)

Netl cash generated from operaling activities 62,235 45,485
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

24, Notes to cash flow statement {continued)

Net debl reconciliation

As at 52 As ot 57 week

week perlod period ended

ended 28 30 march 2019
March 2020

£'000 £000
Cash and Cash equivalents 139,045 98.956
Barrowings - repoyanic after one yeor (456,670) (451.102)
Net debl {317.405) (352.144)
Cash and bquid invesimernits 139,045 98,956
Gross debt - fiked intarest rares {456,670) (451.102)
Net Debt {317,4605) [352.144)

Net debt as at 30 March 201%
Cash flows

Foreign exchange adustmenis
Cther non-cosh movemen!

Other Assets  Liabilities from

financing
activities
Cash at banx Borawings Total
due affer one
year
£'000 £'000 £'000
98,956 (451.102) (352.148)
38.474 - 38474
1.635 - 1,635
[5.568) (5,568)

Nel debl as at 28 Morch 2020

139,065 (456,670} (317,405)




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

25. Contingent liabilities

A corporate cross guargntee of the seniar debt exists between the Company and the majority of its
subsidiary underiakings. The senor debt 5 secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the
Group. The Group ¢lso has in place various guarontees across ils pertfolio. which are typicatl of commercial

and preperty rental agreements.

26. Commitments

Capital commitments

Al the balonce sheet dale the Group had materiacl contiactual commitments Tor capital expenailure of

Enil {2019 E£nil].
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27. FHnancial risk management

Capital risk management

The Group™s objectives when monaging capital are e maoaximise shareholder value whitst safeguarding the
Group's ability to continue as @ going concern. In common with other private equity portfolio compan’es.
the Group caries g hign ievel of net cebt compored to equity. Yotal capitalis colculeted as lotal equity as
shown in the consplidated stglement of position. plus net debt. Net debt is calculated os the total of

borowings as shown in the Consolidated Stotement of Finoncial Position, less cash and cosh eguivaients,
financial risk management objectives

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including curmency risk. interes! rate nsk. crecit

risk and liquidity risk

The Group's overal fsk managemen” programme focuses on minimising polenticl adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance.

Descriptan of the Froncial risks and how these are managed and mitigated are incluoed in the Strategic

Report on page 14,

Tne below 1able demonstrates the sersitivity to o reascnably possible chonge in interest rales and foreign

exchange ratas.

Financial Risks Sensitivity anolysis

Interest Rote Rigk An increase/decrease of one percentege  point in LBOR  would
decrecse/increase the Group 't loss by £5.117.000 (2015 £4,406,000},

Fereign Exchohge FHad the US doliar sirengthened cgainst GBP by on additional 1% during the
Risk period, assuming all other variaoles remained canstont, the Gioup's los

would have decreased Ly £151.000 {2019 £102.000).

Had the Euro strengthened ogsinst GBP by on additona' 1% during the
period, assuming all other vorables remained constant. the Gioup's lass
would have increased by £352.000 (2019: £11.000}.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

27. Financial risk management (continved)

Liquidity

Trie following tobles detail the Group's remaining conractual maturdy for it financial licbiities with ocgresc
repaymeni periods. The tobles have Deen drown up baseo on *he undiscounted cash flows of kinancial
lighililies based on the eariiest date an which the Groop can be required to pay. The lable includes both
interes end prncipal cash flows, Te the extent thal interest ows are flooting rele, the undiscounted amount
is aerived from interest rate curves of the balance sheet dzie, The contractual matunty s hased on *he

eqrliest gate on which ine Group may be requited to pay, The Group is not porty 1o any densvative contracts.

Less than 1

year 1-5yeors 5+ years Total

£000 £'000 £'000 £°000
28 March 2020
Trade ard other payables 115,106 . - 115106
finance lease liability 4,284 17.578 405,639 427,503
Varioble interest rcte instruments 69,370 454,670 - 524,040
Total cash-setlled liabilities 188,762 474,248 405,639 1,068,649
30 March 2019
Trade and other poyables 117,972 - 117,97
Finance lease liabilily 4,244 17,403 400.578 431.225
Varioble inferest role instruments - - 377.5%7 377.597
Total cash-setfied llabilities 122,214 17.231 787,175 926,7%4

Tne Company has ne relevand cash-settied assels of lichilfies and sa haes no ligquidity sk,
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28, Financial Insfruments

Categories of financlal instruments

Lloans and Financial Total
receivables liabilities ot
amortised cost
£'000 £'000 £'000
28 March 2020
Cash and cash eguivaients 13%.065 139.045
Trade and other receivables 62,552 62,552
Financial assets 201,617 201,617
Trade ard other poyables 117.210 117.216
Borrowings 526.040 526.040
Obligations under fincnce leases 177180 177,180
Fingnciol liobjlities - 820,430 820,430
Net financial assels/(liabiilies) 201,677 (820.430) (£18.813)
30 March 2019
Cash ond cash equivalents 98,954 78.954
Trade ard ather receivables 35,237 35,237
Financlal assets 134,193 134,193
Financial liabliities
Trade ond otrer payables 124092 124,090
Bamowings 451102 451,102
Chligation: under Iincnee leases 89,691 89,491
financial liabilities - 644,883 664,883
Net linancial assets/(liabiiities) 134,193 {5$64,883) {530.690)
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

28. Financial Insfruments (continued)

Fair value measurements

The infarmation se* out below provides information about how the Group determines fair values of various

financial nscels and hinancial iabilities,

Financial instruments are grouped nto Leves 1 to 3 bosed on the degree ic which the far value is

observable:

- Ltevel 1 fair value measuremerts are those derived from quotea prices (uncdjusted) in active

markets for identical ossets or liabilities:

- level 2 foir value measurements are those derived from inputs other than gucled prices inclided
within Level 1 Ihel are abservabre ‘or the asse! or liokility, either directly (Le. as prices) or indirecily

(e, gerived from prices); and

- Level 3 1oir value measuremeants are those derived from vaiuction techniques thot include inputs

for the asset or fiability that are rot based on abservabie market data (unchservable inputs].

Fair value of financial assets and financiol liabliities that cre not meosured ot fair valve
The directars cansider that the carrying amounts of fnancial assets and financial habilifies reconded at

amartized cost in the financiol stalements approximate to thein far vaies,

2%. Controlling Party

The Company's ultimate parent company iz lE luxco S.ort (Luxembourg), which is controlled tiy Providence
Equity Partners VIIL A LP (Coyman Islands) end Provigence VI Global Holdings LP (Cayman isionds). The

Directors consider these portics 10 be the controling party.
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30. Related party fransactions

Group
Transactians with direciors and key mancgement persaonne)

Romunoration paid to the dircctor of other, whoe ore corsidered to be key management persornel, is

disclosed in note 4.
Trading fransactions

Duting the period. the Group provided productionreicted service: to cssociotes and joint ventures of
151,875 {2019: £248,000). At the enc of the peried, balances of £115,585 {2019: £1,238.000) were owed 1o
the Group by the ossociates and joint ventures. These balances are unsecured and will be settled
periadicolly over the couwrse of the production. There are currently no provisions relating to these ba.ances,

These transoctions have been conducted at arm's length.

31. Subsidiary entifies, associates and joint ventures and investments

Subsidiaries

100% of *he ordirary share capital of ol subsidiaries is owned drectly or indirec fiy unless oinenwise indicated,
Where indiccled. shorehoidings cre effective owrership perceriages s hele by the parent (. if ©
subsidicny holding company s $0% cwned, ang owns 100% of all its subsidiaries, cl subsiciories are snown as

being 9% owned).

&9




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

incorporated In Unlted Kingdom

Al subsidiories ore 100% owned, except where indiccted and have taken the 547%a exempticn from auodit

untess exemp? from audit in any Case.

Subsidiary underiaking % Shares held

Direct Investiments
Infernational Entertamment pMidco Limited!
Indirect investments

AKA Group Limited

AKANYC Limited?

AK A Promotions Limiled?

ATG Entertainment Limifed”

ATG London Limited?

ATG Managemen Limited?

ATG Productions Limited®

ATG WOTY Limiteo?

Aylesbury Waternside Theotre Limited?
ChurchilThectre Bromley Limiteg®

CF Stuaio Limiteg-

Digital Med:a Services UK Limited?
Encore Infernational Merchandise Limiled:
First Fondy Entertanmenrt LLP

.5 Loshmar Limited” 20%
Glasgow Theatres Lirnited?

Highiand Ring Japar Limited?
Intemnational Enteriaginment Fingnce Umited!
internotional Entertainment Investrments
Limited!

Landon Theclre Club Limite s

Londgoen Turmsiyle Limied?

Milton Keynes Thealre Limited?

New Wimbleden Theatle Limited?
Playhiouse Theotre Limited?

Richmond Theatre Limiled?

Savoy Theatre Group Limited”

Savoy Theotre Hoidings Limite g

Sovoy Thectre Lmted+

Screensiane Limited:®

Screenstage Productions Limiteg®

Smart Plays Limiteg®

Sonia Friedman Proauctions Lirmited?

SFP Dreams Limited?

SFP Shows Limite g™

SFP Sunny Limited?

Stoke-on-Trent Theotres Limited”

The Ambassadaor Entertaonmert Group
Limiteact?

The Arnbassadar Thealte Groun LimiledP

Q0

Principal aclivity

Holging company

Holding comnpany
Marketing services
Marketing services
Helning company
Theatre operqtor and
licketing company

Dormant

Production comparny
Proguction cornparny
Theatto operator
Treatrg cperator
Marketing services
Digital medio services
Merchonadiser
Production comparny
Dormant

Theafte opetator
Dormart

Holging company
Heolzing company

Dormant

Dormanrd

Theatre operator
iheotre operator
Thegtre operator
Theatre operator
Holaing company
Darmanrt

Theatre operator
Dormant

Dormanrt

Dormart

Produciion company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Theatre operator
Holging company

Hexaing and predactnn
Compony



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

The Ampassadar Theatre Group {Venues)
Limited?

The Ambossader 1hegtre Group Overseas
Holdings Limite g®

The Duke of York's Thectre Limited?

The Ticket Machine Group Limited?
Theotre Rayal Brighion Limited-

waokirg Turnstyle Limited?

incorporated in USA

Subsidiary undertaking

ACE Thegirical Group, LLCH

Arts Center Enterprices, LLCE

arts Centor Entorprises - brookdyn, LLCE

Arts Center Enterprises — New Crleans, LLC?
Arty Center Enterprises - Sugar Land, LiC#
Ambassador Theatre Groun — NY, LLCA

AIG Colorial, 113

AIG San Froncisco

ATG Tickets US, LLCE

Crective Porinership La, inc!?

Ercore Merchandising, Inc '

Hudscn Theatre, LLC?

Kings Thecire Developer, LLC®

Kings Thectre Monoger, LLC*

Lyric Thectre, LLCH

mMajestic Presents LLCH

Soenger Aggregator Leverage Lender, LLCE
Saenger Theche Deveioper. Inc’

Saenger Thealre Monager. LLCY

Saenger Theatre Master Tenant LT
Saenger Theatre Partnership, Lid?

SEP-NY. LICt

Saenger Theatre Redeveicpment Comaoony LC*
Suncianee Productons Inc”

The Ambassador Thestre Groug US Mo dings. Inc

@)

% Shares held

Theatre operator
Holging comparny

Theatre operator
Ticketing cgency
Treare operator
Theatre operator

Principol activity
Monagomaent services
Theatre operatsr
Thcatre operater
Thedtire aperatoar
Venue operalor
Progduction company
Venue operalor
Venue operator
Ticketing agency
Morketing services
Dormard

Theatre operator
Venue developer
Monaging memoaor
Theatre operalar
Thcatre operator
Financing coempany
Venue developer
Monaging member
Theatre aperator
Darmant

Production company
Venue developer
Fraduciion compony

Heldirg company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

incorporated in Germaony
The folowing subsidiaries hove clected to appy the exemption available under §244, section 2 of the

German Commercial Code ana hove ot prepared and published financial statements under German

GAAP because they are includod os fully consolidated subsidianes in the ATG Group fincncial statemenrts.

Subsidiory undertoking % Shares held Principotl activity

BB Enfertainment Halding Grb o Holging company

B8 Group GmbHI® Holaing/Monagement
services company

BB Promotion GmbH ! Promaotions company

Bodyguard Verwalungs GmbH!¢ Heleing company

Bodyguard Musicel GmbH & Co KG Production company

EStas Gmbk® Marketing services

Subsidiory undertaking % Shares held Principal octivity

Fondengo Musicel Gmblk -

On Stage Productions'#

tAen-BB Enfedainment GmbRi©

Deutsche Eintritiskarien TK5 GmbH'?

Deutsche Eintritiskarten TKS Service Center GmuoH!'*

Dirty Dancing Tournee: Produktions GmoH & Ce.
KG!‘?

Mehr-BB Theater Gmok™
KAMS Mieht Marketing & Saies GmibH™

Muscal-Dome Verwaltungs- und Betriebsgeselscoft
mpk?!

Slariight Express GmibH

HP-Theater Produklionsgesel schaft mbH'*
Apometnos Gastspiel Yerwaltungs GmioH (L2
Schatten Gastspiet Verwa'tungs GmibH L.

Dirty Dancing Gastspiel Verwalungs GmibH *

o7

Production company
Production compaony
Holaing company
Ticketling company
Ticketing company

Production company

Theater aperaiof
Morketing services

Theater operator

Production company
Production company
Dormant
Dormant

Holaing company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

incorporated in Aushralia

Subsidiary undertaking % Shares held Frincipal activity
AK A Promaotions (Australig) Py L1g!s Marketing services
Encore Merchandise {Australia) Pty Limited '~ Dormant

The Ambassadar Thecotre Group Asic Pacit.c Pty Produciion coreaLiy
Limitedie

Assoclotes and Jolnt Ventures

Name Incorporated % Shares held  Principal aclivity

HP West Eng umiled* United Kingdom 25% Froduchon company
JB UK Touwr || Productions Litd® United Kinggdom % Production company
intershiow Merchandise GmbHYw Germany 100% Production compony
ISA Show AGT Switzerand S0% Production company

Other invesiments

Nome Incorporafed % Shares held  Principaf acfivity
Deutsche Eintdttskarten TKS Gmbk Germany 0.02% Ticketing agency
Cievern investments [ td united Kingdom 10% Produchon company
Kings Theote Redevelopment Company  USA 1.08% Venue developer
LLC

tierlin Entertainments pic United Kingdom 0.00% Ereriainment group
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

‘These componies have a registered o'fice of 28 $1. George Street, London WIS 2FA
2These companies nave aregistered office of 115 Shoflestury Averue, Carnbiriclge Cirous, London WC2H
BAF

HTnese companies iave a registered office of 27 Hoor Alexander Bouse, Crurch Path, Woking, Surey
U2t GEJ

¢ This company hos aregistered office of £ Foor, B9 New Bond Streel, Loncon WS 1DA

Mniy company has aregistered office of 45 Manmouith Steel. Dovid lan Fredactions, Londar, WC2H DG
¢ TInese companies hove gregistered office of Capital Services, tinc,. 1675 South Stote §t., Sie B, Dover,

DE 19901

TTnese companies hove oregistered office of Copitol Corporate Services, Inc,. 8550 United Plara Bldg, Il $te
305, Baton Rouge, LA 70809
FThese companies heve o registeren office of Conitol Corporate Services. Inc,, 206 E.95h 81, Ste 1300,
Austin, Tx 78701
*Inis company has aregistered office of Fitelson, tasky, Aslan, Coulure. & Garmise, Richard Garmise, 551
Sih Ave HA05, New York, NY 10174

These companies have aregistered office of Ritntgenztrate 7, 68167 tannhegim

IThis company has o registered office of Charollenst. 68, 10117 Berin

“These companies have aregistered office of Landstergshralie 28, 50678 Kdin

These companies have aregistered office of 6624 San Fernando Rood, Los Angeles. CAGI210-1794
“These companies have ategistered office of 630, 9th Avenue, Suite 305 New Yark, New York 10034
“These companies have aregistered oifice of Suite 6.1, Level 4, 3 Bower Crescent, Melbourne, Victona
3004, Australio

tThis company Hios S redistersd office of Suite 3, Level 1, 4 - 10 Bay Streel, Couble Bay, NSw 2028

T This company hos o redivtersd office of CormensiroRe 12, BO32 Zuich

“This company nas < regisiered office of Komoedienstr. 11, 50647 Kéin

T This company has 3 registered office of Erkrataer St 30, 40233 Dasserdor!

2This company tas o regisfered office of Banksstrale 28, 20097 Hoambag

2 This company has o registered office of Goldgasse 1, 50668 Kaln

22 This company has o registered office of Sladionning 24, 44791 Bochum

2This company 7as o regis'ered office of 1800 Post Oax Blva. 4 Boulevard Piace. Suite 450, Houstor, Texas
77056

M This company hos o registerec office of 1313 N Market $t. Ste 5100 Wilmingtor, DE 19821
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